
AGENDA 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
September 14, 2021 

1:00 pm  
** via GoToMeeting 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes
• August 28, 2021

2. Council Meeting Minutes
• August 28, 2021

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

a) Long Term Support for SASCI’s Community Grant Specialist – SASCI Request

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Policy C-AES-001 License of Occupation
• Previously reviewed by Council and ASB

b) Road Closure Request – SW 13-7-3 W5M
• Tabled from August 24, 2021 – requires tabling motion to move to September 28, 2021

meeting

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
a) Chinook Arch Board Report – August 5, 2021

2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3

a) Castle Mountain Community Association AGM - October 2, 2021
b) Agricultural Service Board Minutes – June 16, 2021
c) CMCA Liftline Magazine

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4
5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Report
• Report from Administration and Public Works dated September 9, 2021
• Call Log

2. Finance

3. Planning and Development

a) AES Monthly Reports
• Report for August
• Report for September

b) AES Vereris Intelli-Spray Weed Sprayer Purchase Timing
• Report from Director of Planning and Community Development, dated September 9, 2021

c) Direct Control Development Permit Application 2021-58
• Report from Director of Planning and Community Development, dated September 9, 2021

4. Municipal

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report
• Report from CAO, dated September 9, 2021



H. CORRESPONDENCE

1. For Action

a) September Meeting Details and Agenda Package
• Foothills Little Bow

b) Request for Letter of Support for the Legalization of Harvest preserves
• Alberta Elk Commission

c) Information Circular – Cervid Harvesting Preserves
• Alberta Fish and Game Association

d) Pincher Creek Emergency Services Funding Formula
• Letter from Town of Pincher Creek

2. For Information

a) Bank Swallow Recovery Strategy Feedback
• Letter from Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA)

b) Provincial Policing Letter of Support
• Village of Elnora

c) Blowdown Notification
• TC Energy

I. NEW BUSINESS

J. CLOSED MEETING SESSION

K. ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
Tuesday, August 24, 2021 9:00 am 

Present: Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Terry Yagos, and Quentin 
Stevick. 

Staff: CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, 
Public Works Superintendent Eric Blanchard, Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, Brendan 
Schlossberger and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Absent: Councillor Bev Everts  

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order, the time being 9:00am. 

1. Approval of Agenda

Councillor Rick Lemire 

Moved that the agenda for August 24, 2021 be approved as presented. 

Carried 

2. Capital Budget 2022

Department heads presented the draft Capital Budget for 2022. Capital Budget will be formally 
approved once Operational Budget has been presented. 

4. Adjournment

Councillor Rick Lemire  

Moved that the Committee Meeting adjourn, the time being 11:40 am. 

C1



MINUTES  9450 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
AUGUST 24, 2021 

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, August 
24, 2021, at 1:00 pm, in the Council Chambers located at 1037 Herron Ave. 

PRESENT Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Terry Yagos, Quentin Stevick 
and Bev Everts (via conference call). 

STAFF CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, 
Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order the time being 1:00 pm. 

A. PUBLIC HEARING – BYLAW 1331-21

In order to receive public input on proposed Bylaw No. 1331-21, a Public Hearing, conducted by the Council of 
the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9, was held on Tuesday, August 24, 2021. 

1. Call Public Hearing to Order

Reeve Hammond called the Public Hearing to order, the time being 1:00 pm.

2. Advertising Requirement

This Public Hearing has been advertised in accordance with Section 606 of the
Municipal Government Act.  This Public Hearing was advertised in the Shootin the
Breeze on August 4 and August 18, as well as the MD website and MD Social Media
pages.

3. Purpose of the Hearing

The purpose of Bylaw No. 1331-21 is to close to public travel and creating title to and disposing of
land described as: 

EXTRA ROAD AREA 'A', PLAN ---- --- 
CONTAINING 0.164 HECTARES (0.41 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 

4. Overview of Bylaw 1331-21

 Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan gave an overview of Bylaw
1331-21

5. Presentations:

VERBAL: 

Reeve Hammond asked if anyone in the audience wished to make a statement, none wanted to 
speak. 

WRITTEN: 

Reeve Hammond asked if any written submission had been received, none had been received. 

6. Closing Comments

Reeve Hammond asked if Council has any further questions, there were no further questions. 

7. Adjournment from Public Hearing

Councillor Terry Yagos closed the Public Hearing the time being 1:02 pm. 

B. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/321 

C2



9451 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
August 24, 2021 

 
Moved that the Council Agenda for August 24, 2021 be approved as presented. 
 
         Carried 

B. DELEGATIONS  
 
 SASCI  
 

Members with SASCI (Southwest Alberta Sustainable Communities Initiative) attended the meeting at 
this time to discuss the possibility of long term support for the Community Grant Specialist. President 
Dan Crawford and Grant Writer Liza Dawber attended to speak to this project and provide background. 
SASCI is currently asking both the Town and the MD for support for the Grant Specialist at a cost of 
$11.25 per capita, per year. For the MD, this would be based on the 2016 federal census of 2,965, for a 
total ask of $33,356.25 per year.  
 
Council will discuss at the Council meeting of September 14, 2021.  
 

C. MINUTES 
 

1. Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/322 
 
Moved that the Minutes of the Committee Meeting on July 13, 2021 be amended to include the 
words “and be provided for the public”, 
 
AND THAT the minutes be approved as amended. 
 

Carried 
2. Council Meeting Minutes  

 
Councillor Bev Everts     21/323 
 
Moved that the Minutes of the Council Meeting on July 13, 2021 be approved as presented. 
 

Carried 
 

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES  
 
E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 
 

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1 
2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 

a) Alberta Southwest 
b) EAC 
c) Beaver Mines Public Meeting 

3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3  
a) Beaver Mines Public Meeting 
b) Upcoming Huckleberry Festival at Castle Mountain  

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4 
a) Crowsnest Pincher Creek Landfill 
b) Heritage Acres – Grand Opening Blacksmith Shop  

5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 
a) Lundbreck Citizens Council  
b) Alberta Southwest  

  



9452 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
August 24, 2021 

 
Councillor Terry Yagos     21/324 
 
Moved to accept the Committee Reports and information. 
 

Carried 
 

Public Works Superintendent Eric Blanchard attended the meeting at this time to discuss the call logs.  
 
G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS  

 
1. Operations  

 
a) Operations Call Log  
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/325 
 
Moved that Council receive the Operations report, which includes the call log, for the period 
July 13, 2021 to August 24, 2021 is received as information.  
 

Carried 
 

2.  Finance  
 

a) Wastewater Line Flushing 
 
Councillor Rick Lemire    21/326 
 
Moved that Council approve an additional $18,280 in funds for line flushing, with the said 
funds coming from the Water and Wastewater Infrastructure Reserve. 
 

Carried 
 

3. Development and Community Services 
 
a) Agricultural Environmental Services Monthly Report 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/327 
 
Moved that the Environmental Services Monthly Report for July and August 2021 be 
received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
  b) 2021 Quarter 1 – Crowsnest Pass RCMP 
 
  Councillor Terry Yagos    21/328 
 

Moved that Council accept the update from the Crowsnest RCMP as information, 
including: 

• Body Worn Camera & Digital Evidence Management System 
• Community Policing Report 
• Provincial Policing Report 

 
Carried 

 
c) Municipal Development Plan Update, Bylaw No. 1330-21 
  
Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/329 
 
Moved that Council give Bylaw 1330-21, being the Municipal Development Plan, first reading; 
 
AND THAT the required Public Hearing be scheduled for September 28, 2021 at 1:00 pm; 



9453 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
August 24, 2021 

 
AND FURTHER THAT a Public Engagement Session be scheduled for September 23, 2021 at 
6:00pm. 
 

Carried 
 
d) Road Closure for Lease Purposes, Bylaw No. 1332-21 

 
 Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/330 
 

Moved that Council give first reading to Road Closure Bylaw 1332-21, for the purpose of 
closing for lease purposes, that portion of undeveloped Roan Plan 3299BZ within the E ½ 25-9-
1 W5M; 

 
AND THAT the required public hearing be scheduled for September 28, 2021 at 1:00 pm. 
 

Carried  
 

4. Municipal  
 
a) Chief Administrative Officer Report  

 
Councillor Rick Lemire    21/331 

 
Moved that Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer’s report for the 
period of July 13, 2021 to August 24, 2021. 

  
Carried 

 
H.         CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. For Action 

 
a) Engagement Sessions on the Libraries Act Legislation and Red Tape Reduction 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos     21/332 
 
Moved that the invitation to the Engagement Sessions on the Libraries Act Legislation and Red 
Tape Reduction, be received as information. 
 

Carried 
          
b) Election Services Agreement with Livingstone Range School Division 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/333 
 
Moved that the Election Services Agreement with Livingstone Range School Division be approved 
for the 2022 Election. 
 

Carried 
 
c) Meeting Request for Fall RMA Convention 
 
Discussion took place regarding Fall RMA Convention, the CAO was directed to draft a response 
to the meeting request. 
 
d) Call for Resolutions (Foothills Little Bow) 
 
Council discussed a need to send a resolution to Foothills Little Bow, and declined at this time.  

  



9454 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
August 24, 2021 

 
2.     For Information  

 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/334 

 
  Moved that the following be received as information: 

a) Housing Management Body (HMB) and Municipality Relationship 
• information sheet sent from Alberta Seniors and Housing 

b) Oldman River Basin Water Allocation Order Letter 
• Follow up letter from MD of Ranchland  

c) Bill C-21 – Changes to the Criminal Code and the Firearms Act 
• Letter from County of Vermilion River  
• Letter from Municipality of Crowsnest Pass  

d) Helicopter Emergency Medical Services 
• Information from RMA  

e) Support for National Suicide Prevention Hotline 
• Town of Pincher Creek Resolution  

f) Code of Conduct 
• Letter from Town of Claresholm to Honourable Ric McIver  

g) RCMP Retroactive Pay 
• Letter from Town of Claresholm to Premier Jason Kenney  

h) Provincial Education Requisition Credit Program 
• Letter regarding application  

i) Alberta Police Interim Advisory Board Information 
j) Cancellation of Household Hazardous Waste Funding 

• Letter from Town of Rocky Mountain House  
k) Proclamation from Village of Caroline  
l) MD of Pincher Creek Support for RCMP 

• Letter from Deputy Commissioner  
 

Carried 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 
J. CLOSED SESSION 
 

Councillor Quentin Stevick     21/335 

Moved that Council move in to closed session to discuss the following, the time being 3:47 pm: 
 

a) Road Closure Request, SW 13-7-3 W5M – FOIP Section 17 
b) Road Closure Request, SE 17-4-28 W4M – FOIP Section 17 
c) Road Closure Request, NE 9-4-28 W4M – FOIP Section 17 
d) Road Closure Request SW 31-8-1 W5M – FOIP Section 17 

        Carried 
 

Councillor Rick Lemire     21/336 
 
Moved that Council open the Council meeting to the public, the time being 4:16 pm.  
 

Carried 
  

a) Road Closure Request, SW 13-7-3 W5M 

Councillor Terry Yagos     21/337 

Moved that the road closure request for the SW 13-7-3 W5M, be tabled pending further information. 

Carried 

  



9455 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
August 24, 2021 

 
b) Road Closure Request, SE 17-4-28 W4M  

Councillor Quentin Stevick     21/338 

Moved that Council deny the applicant’s request, as pursuant to Policy 123 Purchase, Sale and Disposal 
of Road Allowances, there is no clear benefit to the municipality at this time; 

AND THAT the applicant be provided with the information on closing the road for lease purposes. 

c) Road Closure Request, NE 9-4-28 W4M  

Councillor Rick Lemire     21/339 

Moved that Council deny the applicant’s request, as pursuant to Policy 123 Purchase, Sale and Disposal 
of Road Allowances, there is no clear benefit to the municipality at this time; 

Carried 

d) Road Closure Request SW 31-8-1 W5M  

Councillor Quentin Stevick      21/340 
 
Moved that Council deny the applicant’s request, as pursuant to Policy 123 Purchase, Sale and Disposal 
of Road Allowances, there is no clear benefit to the municipality at this time; 

AND THAT the applicant be provided with the information required in order to develop the access 
from the north. 

 
K.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos     21/341 

Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 4:19 pm. 
 
        Carried 
 
 

              
     REEVE 

 
       

      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



Dan Crawford, SASCI Director and volunteer

Long Term Support for SASCI’s 
Community Grant Specialist
A proposal from the Southwest Alberta Sustainable Community 
Initiative (SASCI)
Presentation to M.D. of Pincher Creek Council

August 24, 2021

Da



Brief History of the Community Grant Specialist
• Challenge: Growing difficulty for community service organizations to secure funds for projects 

and operations (fewer people must spend more time to apply for smaller pools of grant funding)

• Opportunity: Ms. Liza Dawber, Grant Specialist

• Initiative: Pincher Creek Community Development Initiative, established 2018 as SASCI Agent

• Objective: Establish permanent full-time position for a Community Grant Specialist to serve the 
Town and M.D. of Pincher Creek, sustained by revenues generated from services delivered

• Initial investment: Town and M.D. of Pincher Creek (2018-2019), Community organizations 

• Business model: Charge small commissions on all funds secured with help of Grant Specialist

• Transition: SASCI and PCCDI merge 2019, SASCI takes on funding and governing of the Grant 
Specialist

• Adaptation: SASCI establishes BRIDGEBuilder initiative to support Grant Specialist.



Successes
• Grant Specialist has helped local community organizations secure $1.2 million of 

grant funding since May 2018, including $187,792 of COVID-specific funding

• Grant Specialist has assisted with grant applications totaling $5.8 million, with 
applications totaling $1.8 million still awaiting decisions from funders

• Grant Specialist actively engages local community organizations to track funding 
needs and identify opportunities for strategic collaboration

• Grant Specialist mentors local community leaders in identifying and leveraging 
sources of funding to support projects and operations (examples)

• Grant Specialist supports local governments in improving the efficiency and 
effectiveness of their Joint Council community investment program



Challenges
• The initial business model for the Grant Specialist position proved untenable 

because of funder ethical constraints (no commissions for fundraisers) 

• COVID has shifted public and philanthropic investment priorities towards 
meeting acute and immediate needs, at the expense of funding longer-term 
needs and strategic initiatives like SASCI’s BRIDGEBuilder Initiative

• All sources of project funding that could be leveraged to support the Grant 
Specialist position by way of SASCI’s BRIDGEBuilder Initiative have now been 
fully exploited, and will not continue to invest in the same initiative

• SASCI has no solution in place to fund the Grant Specialist position from 
January 2022 onward



Proposed Solution
• The Town of Pincher Creek (pop. 3,642) and M.D. of Pincher Creek (pop. 

2,965) have combined population of 6,607 based on the 2016 federal census.

• Supporting the Grant Specialist has cost $11.35 per capita per year ($75,000)

• ROI to our communities has averaged $60.00 per capita per year in terms of 
funds raised with the help of the Grant Specialist ($1.2 million over 38 months)

• The most sustainable long-term solution for funding the Grant Specialist 
position is to fund it through our local government(s)

• This is also the most reasonable solution, given the Grant Specialist’s track 
record of generating ROI for our communities.



Request
• SASCI requests that the Town of Pincher Creek and Municipal District of 

Pincher Creek fully and jointly fund its Community Grant Specialist position 
through their respective annual operating budgets starting in January of 2022.

• We appreciate this opportunity to present our proposal, and welcome your 
questions.



Ea













BOARD
REPORT
Chinook Arch Library Board Meeting - August 5, 2021

Thanks to support from Alberta’s Community Initiatives

Program (CIP), the Waterton townsite now enjoys regional

library service! Although the project was delayed due to

the pandemic, it was finally launched earlier this

summer. The service consists of an automated locker

system with a small browsing collection. It also serves as

a holds pickup location, so residents, seasonal workers,

and visitors can have items brought to them. Chinook

Arch will deliver to Waterton on a weekly basis. 

The Waterton Micro-Library is located in the south foyer

of the temporary visitor’s centre, at 209 Fountain Ave.

Check it out next time you’re in the area! Plans for a

similar service on the Piikani Nation are underway.

Book Locker Launches in Waterton!

F1a



facebook.com/

chinook.arch7

@chinooklibs @chinooklibs

Contact Us
Chinook Arch Regional Library System

2902 7th Avenue North

Lethbridge, AB  T1H 5C6  |  403-380-1500

www.chinookarch.ca  |  arch@chinookarch.ca

Board Members Present
Arrowwood

Cardston

Claresholm

Coaldale

Crowsnest Pass

Glenwood

Hill Spring

Lethbridge

Lethbridge County

Lomond

Magrath

Milk River

Milo

Nanton

Pincher Creek

Pincher Creek MD

Raymond

Taber

Taber MD

Vulcan County

Warner County

ID of Waterton

Willow Creek MD

LPL Resource Centre

Regrets:

Barons

Fort Macleod

Picture Butte

Absent:

Barnwell

Cardston County

Champion

Coalhurst

Coutts

Stavely

Stirling

Vauxhall

Vulcan

Warner

Kainai Board of Education

Wendy Williams

Dennis Barnes

Tony Hamlyn

Briane Simpson

Doreen Glavin

David Rolfson

Suzanne French

Heather Woodruff

Tory Campbell

Marie Logan

DeVar Dahl (Chair)

Margaret McCanna

Christopher Northcott

Marie Schooten

Mark Barber

Quentin Stevick

Joan Harker

Joe Strojwas

Tamara Miyanaga

Doug Logan

Morgan Rockenbach

Lesley Little

Maryanne Sandberg

Wendy Kalkan

Ron Gorzitza

Jim Monteith

Teresa Feist

Jane Johnson

Tom Nish

Trevor Wagenvoort

Heather Caldwell

Marvin Bohne

Brydon Saunders

Rob Edwards

Kim Cawley

Liz Hammond

Colette Glynn

Linda Weasel Head

In September 2021, the Public Library Services Branch of Alberta Municipal

Affairs will be seeking feedback from stakeholders on potential changes to

Alberta’s library legislation. Many of the proposed changes are in the areas of

library governance, staffing, and reporting. Feedback from board members,

municipal councillors, and other stakeholders is welcome. This initiative is part of

the government’s “red tape reduction” initiative. 

To register for a feedback session, follow this link:
https://extranet.gov.ab.ca/opinio6/s?s=53846

Up for ReviewAlberta Libraries Act

Due to changes in the way the Government of Alberta

reports on population figures, it was necessary for the

Chinook Arch Library Board to revise its System

Agreement for the first time since 1992. In order for the

new Agreement to take effect, it must be ratified by 2/3

of member councils representing 2/3 of the population

served. As of this writing, 23 councils representing 80,673

people have approved the Agreement. To meet the

threshold, 27 councils representing 139,456 people must

approve the agreement.

Update on the Revised System Agreement

Services for the

Print Impaired

Capital Assets

Employee

Benefits

Hours of Work

and Overtime

Policies
Revised

https://extranet.gov.ab.ca/opinio6/s?s=53846


From: CMCA
To: CMCA
Subject: Fwd: Documents for CMCA AGM
Date: September 8, 2021 11:20:23 AM
Attachments: Proxy Form Attachment 1.doc

CMCA 2020-21 AGM Information Circular.docx
AGM Minutes 2020 Attachment 2.docx
2020-21 CMCA Audited Financials Attachment 3.docx
Cover Memo - 2020-21 AGM Info Circular.docx

TAKE NOTICE THAT the 2021 annual general meeting (AGM) of Castle Mountain
Community Association will be held:

Date: Saturday, October 2, 2021
Time: 10 a.m.
Place: Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge

We will ask all attendees to register upon entry, wear masks and respect any
provincial health and social distancing recommendations in existence at the time.
Masks and hand sanitizer will be available at the door.

The meeting will also be broadcast via Zoom. If you wish to join the meeting via
Zoom, please indicate such by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com,
prior to Wednesday, September 29 and a meeting invite will be directed to you. If
you are attending via Zoom please arrange to cast your vote by Proxy using the
form attached to this circular.

We urge all members who cannot, or do not wish to, attend the meeting in
person to make your preferences known by completing and returning the Proxy
form contained in the attached file. A Proxy assigns your voting rights to another CMCA
member and authorizes them
to vote on your behalf. Proxies may be returned by email to
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com by
8:30 am on October 2, or may be delivered to the Meeting. We ask that any Proxies being
delivered to the Meeting arrive at the registration table no later
than 9:30 am.

IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR COMPLETED PROXY
WILL
HELP TO ENSURE WE HAVE A QUORUM (10% of paid membership – 18 people).
The Board has brought forward no Special Resolutions to be voted on at this

Please review the attached documents before the meet.  Note that the agenda is attached in the
Cover Memo doc attached.

F3a

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com

[image: image1.png]

Attachment 1

2021 CMCA Annual General Meeting

Member Proxy

Members who are unable to attend the AGM are encouraged to provide a signed proxy to a nominee member who will attend the meeting.  This will help to ensure a quorum for votes.


I, _______________________________________________ will not be present at the CMCA AGM 


      (print name of CMCA member granting proxy)


on Saturday, October 3, 2021, and I do hereby designate and appoint: 


Please choose one:

		____  initial 

		I appoint the current CMCA President or his/her nominee to act as my proxy for the purpose of business arising at the CMCA AGM on October 2, 2021.



		OR

		





		____  initial 

		I appoint ____________________________________, who is a current member in good standing of CMCA, to act as my proxy for the purpose of business arising at the CMCA AGM on October 2, 2021, including business arising from the Floor
(PLEASE LEGIBLY PRINT NAME OF APPOINTED PROXY) 





Dated and signed at ___________________ this ________day of _____________2021.





            (city)


   (date)

     
(month)


___________________________________________

(Signature of CMCA Member Granting Proxy)

Please have this completed proxy brought to the meeting registration table, by 9:30am on October 2,  2021, or email a photo or scan of this completed Proxy to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com no later than 8:30 am on October 2, 2021 so your Proxy can be recognized at the meeting. 

There are no Special Resolutions proposed by the Board of Directors to be voted upon at this meeting.



Castle Mountain Community Association (CMCA)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING





TAKE NOTICE THAT the 2021 annual general meeting (AGM) of CMCA will be held:

	Date:	Saturday, October 2, 2021

	Time:	10 a.m. 

	Place:	Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge



We will ask all attendees to register upon entry, wear masks and respect any provincial health and social distancing recommendations in existence at the time. Masks and hand sanitizer will be available at the door.  



The meeting will also be broadcast via Zoom. If you wish to join the meeting via Zoom, please indicate such by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, prior to Wednesday, September 29 and a meeting invite will be directed to you. If you are attending via Zoom please arrange to cast your vote by Proxy using the form attached to this circular.



Information Circular



PROXIES  



We urge all members who cannot, or do not wish to, attend the meeting in person to make your preferences known by completing and returning the attached Proxy form.   See Attachment #1. 



A Proxy assigns your voting rights to another CMCA member and authorizes them to vote on your behalf. 



Proxies may be returned by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com by 8:30 am on October 2, or may be delivered to the Meeting.  We ask that any Proxies being delivered to the Meeting arrive at the registration table no later than 9:30 am.  

 

IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR COMPLETED PROXY WILL HELP TO ENSURE WE HAVE A QUORUM (10% of paid membership or 18 people).



The Board has brought forward no Special Resolutions to be voted on at this year’s AGM.



MEETING AGENDA



We will conduct the business of this meeting as expeditiously as possible. The Agenda for the Meeting is:



1. Approval of Agenda

2. Quorum confirmation

3. Approval of minutes from CMCA’s 2020 AGM 

4. Financial report for 2021

5. Auditor’s report

6. Approval of 2021 financial statements 

7. Appointment of auditors for 2022

8. Election of Directors

9. Adjourn formal meeting

10. Presentation by Executive



Any member wishing to add an item to the Agenda is requested to provide written notice by Sept 29th, 2021, by email to: castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com.



If you have questions for the Board, please submit them to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com and we will respond by social media.



NOTICE ATTACHMENTS



PROXY form



The AGM Proxy form is provided as Att. #1.  Please complete and return this form if you will not be attending the AGM in person.





Minutes



The Minutes of CMCA’s 2020 meeting are provided as Att. #2





FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT OPINION



CMCA’s summary audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and the audit opinion there on are provided as Att. #3



The financial statements were audited by Gerry De Leeuw and Julie Heinrich who reviewed the statements and accounts and report that the statements accurately reflect the financial results of CMCA for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021. 



Gerry and Julie have offered to act as auditors for the coming year, again with no remuneration.



ELECTION



The future of CMCA is critically dependent upon the enthusiasm and engagement of its Board of Directors. The Board is composed of nine members.  In order to ensure continuity, four board members are elected in one year and five the next year. 





The five CMCA board members who were elected in 2020 and accordingly will continue their terms until the next AGM in 2022 are: 

	Ray Bussey

	Judy Clark (Seleski)

	Glenn Downey

	Tara Garratt

	Kevin Finn

	

The four CMCA board members who were in elected in 2019, and whose terms therefore are up this year, are:



Glenn Armstrong

	Julie Heinrich

	Caralee Marriot

	Fraser Stewart



The following CMCA members have put their names forward, for election or re-election this year, to the CMCA Board of Directors:

	

Glenn Armstrong

	Julie Heinrich





FYI:   The CMCA board hugely thanks Fraser Stewart and Caralee Marriott for their service. Caralee will remain as the editor of The Liftline, while the Stewarts have retired to Lethbridge to begin a new chapter in their lives.  



At the AGM, Glenn and Julie will be nominated by the Board. Subsequently, nominations from the floor will be solicited. 



Should there be more than two nominations from the floor, an election will be held by ballot. Should there be two or fewer nominations from the floor, the forgoing Members and nominees shall be proclaimed as directors. 



We encourage any members of CMCA in good standing who wish to run for election as a Director to notify Kevin Finn by email or telephone (kvn.finn@gmail.com, 403-809-3393) prior to the Meeting or, in person, when nominations are called for at the Meeting. 








ADDENDUM



MEMBERS AT LARGE



We encourage interested CMCA Members to volunteer to be Members at Large of the CMCA Board.  Members at Large are non-executive members with no specific duties or responsibilities who are invited to attend Board meetings, receive agendas and minutes, and may be asked to provide advice to the Board and sit on committees.



VOLUNTEERS



CMCA is extremely reliant on a pool of active volunteers who are willing to work a few (or more!) hours a year to improve the community. Watch for emails and signups from CMCA, and the various community social media platforms to discover opportunities to make Castle an even better place to be.      





Respectfully, 







CMCA Board of Directors

[bookmark: _GoBack]August 12, 2021









 












Attachment 2



Castle Mountain Community Association 

Annual General Meeting 

Date: September 26, 2020  

Time: 10:00 am 

Location: Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge 

“If you love to live, work or play here you are a member of our community” 

CMCA Mission: Castle Mountain Community Association is committed to promoting a family oriented, safe and sustainable community experience for its members and  visitors in our unique alpine setting. 

CMCA Vision: A vibrant community sustained through collaborative partnerships, shared values and common interests. 

CMCA Goals: 

∙ Expand membership/enhance member engagement 

∙ Enhance community connectivity 

∙ Develop community recreation potential 

∙ Environmental stewardship 

∙ Community beautification 

∙ Develop fundraising capacity 

∙ Encourage development of community infrastructure plan 

∙ Represent member interests effectively to CMR and external interest groups 

Minutes 

1. Call to Order:  

The Annual General Meeting of the Castle Mountain Community, was called to order at 10:00 am. 

2. Quorum Confirmation: 

Attendance is comprised of 21 proxies and 13 community members in attendance to a total of 34 members. 

Motion by Ray Bussey and seconded by Judy Clark that the 34 members have exceded Quorum requirements. 

Motion Carried.

3. Approval of the Agenda: 

Motion by Fraser Stewart and Seconded by Anne Whiteside to approve the Agenda. 

Motion Carried. 

4. Approval of the Minutes from the CMCA’s 2019 AGM: 

Motion by Glenn Armstrong, and seconded by Larry Cooper to approve the minutes from the 2019 Annual General Meeting. 

Motion Carried. 

5. Financial Report: 

A full Audited Financial Statement was emailed to community members prior to the AGM. 

6. Auditors Report:

The Auditors report that the Financial Statements fairly represent the results of the Association’s operations for the year ended March 31, 2020 



7. Approval of 2020 Financial Statements 

Glenn Downey reviewed the Audited Financial Statement. 

Motion by Fraser Stewart, and seconded by Larry Kundrik to approve Financial  Statements.  

Motion Carried. 

8. Appointment of Auditors for 2021: 

Motion by Glenn Downey, and seconded by Fraser Stewart to appoint Gerry De leeuw and Julie Heinrich as the Auditors for 2021. 

Motion Carried. 

9. Review/Approval of updated by-laws for CMCA: 

The updated bylaws were sent out to the community members prior to the AGM for  their review.



Motion by Ray Bussey, and seconded by Larry Kindrik to approve the Special Resolution containing the updated by laws for the CMCA as presented to the community members with the following revision; 

11.5.1 CMCA members can also vote by proxy. The proxy ballot shall list all resolutions proposed by the Board and provide space for the member to vote for or against each resolution. In addition the ballot shall allow the member the choice to assign their vote on any additional motions brought forth from the floor to another member in good standing. 

11.5.2 A member in good standing attending the AGM can only vote a maximum of six proxy votes only on such additional motions from the floor. 

Motion Carried, 

Special Resolution Approved 

10. Election of Directors: 

The four CMCA Board Members who were elected in 2019, and will continue their terms until the next AGM in 2021 are: Glenn Armstrong, Julie Heinrich, Caralee Marriot and Fraser Stewart. 

The following CMCA Members have put their names forward for re-election are; Ray Bussey, Judy Clark, Glenn Downey, Tarra Garratt, and Kevin Finn. 

Kevin thanked both Sheri Herold and Monica Stewart for their work on the CMCA Board. 

Kevin called for nominations from the floor, and there were no nominations from the floor. 

Motion by Glenn Armstrong, and seconded by Larry Cooper to approve the following as the Board of Directors for 2021 Glenn Armstrong, Julie Heinrich,  Caralee Marriot, Fraser Stewart, Ray Bussey, Judy Clark, Glenn Downey, Tarra  Garratt, and Kevin Finn. 

Motion Carried.

11. Dieter Award: 

[bookmark: _GoBack]Kevin described the role Dieter played in making Castle Mountain a special place. Kevin revealed this year’s recipient for the Dieter Award – Julie Heinrich. 

12. Adjournment: 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:28 am by Fraser.








[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ] 

[image: ][image: ] 

[image: ] 





[image: ]

image1.jpeg



image2.jpeg



image3.jpeg



image4.jpeg



image5.jpeg






Castle Mountain Community Association (CMCA)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING





TAKE NOTICE THAT the 2021 annual general meeting (AGM) of CMCA will be held:

	Date:	Saturday, October 2, 2021

	Time:	10 a.m. 

	Place:	Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge



We will ask all attendees to register upon entry, wear masks and respect any provincial health and social distancing recommendations in existence at the time. Masks and hand sanitizer will be available at the door.  



The meeting will also be broadcast via Zoom. If you wish to join the meeting via Zoom, please indicate such by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, prior to Wednesday, September 29 and a meeting invite will be directed to you. If you are attending via Zoom please arrange to cast your vote by Proxy using the form attached to this circular.



We urge all members who cannot, or do not wish to, attend the meeting in person to make your preferences known by completing and returning the Proxy form contained in the attached file.  



A Proxy assigns your voting rights to another CMCA member and authorizes them to vote on your behalf. 



Proxies may be returned by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com by 8:30 am on October 2, or may be delivered to the Meeting.  We ask that any Proxies being delivered to the Meeting arrive at the registration table no later than 9:30 am.  

 

IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR COMPLETED PROXY WILL HELP TO ENSURE WE HAVE A QUORUM (10% of paid membership – 18 people).



The Board has brought forward no Special Resolutions to be voted on at this year’s AGM.



MEETING AGENDA



We will conduct the business of this meeting as expeditiously as possible. The Agenda for the Meeting is:



1. Approval of Agenda

2. Quorum confirmation

3. Approval of minutes from CMCA’s 2020 AGM 

4. Financial report for 2021

5. Auditor’s report

6. Approval of 2021 financial statements 

7. Appointment of auditors for 2022

8. Election of Directors

9. Adjourn formal meeting

10. Presentation by Executive



There are four Directors to be elected this year for two year terms. The Board nominates Glenn Armstrong and Julie Heinrich. At least two Directors positions will be filled by nominations from the floor at the AGM meeting.   



[bookmark: _GoBack]Any member wishing to nominate a member as a candidate for Director, to be nominated from the floor at the meeting, you may do so by written notice by October 2 at 8:30 by email to: castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, or may do so in person at the meeting.



Any member wishing to add an item to the Agenda is requested to provide written notice by Sept 29th, 2021, by email to: castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com.



If you have questions for the Board, please submit them to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com and we will respond by social media.











 
 

Attachment 1 
2021 CMCA Annual General Meeting 

Member Proxy 
 
 

Members who are unable to attend the AGM are encouraged to provide a signed proxy to a 
nominee member who will attend the meeting.  This will help to ensure a quorum for votes. 
 
 
I, _______________________________________________ will not be present at the CMCA AGM  
      (print name of CMCA member granting proxy) 
 
on Saturday, October 3, 2021, and I do hereby designate and appoint:  
 

Please choose one: 

____  initial  

 

I appoint the current CMCA President or his/her nominee to act as my proxy for the purpose 
of business arising at the CMCA AGM on October 2, 2021. 

OR  

____  initial  

 

I appoint ____________________________________, who is a current member in good 
standing of CMCA, to act as my proxy for the purpose of business arising at the CMCA AGM 
on October 2, 2021, including business arising from the Floor 
(PLEASE LEGIBLY PRINT NAME OF APPOINTED PROXY)  

 
 
Dated and signed at ___________________ this ________day of _____________2021. 
               (city)      (date)        (month) 
 
___________________________________________ 
(Signature of CMCA Member Granting Proxy) 
 
 

 
 
 
 



  
 
Please have this completed proxy brought to the meeting registration table, by 
9:30am on October 2,  2021, or email a photo or scan of this completed Proxy to 
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com no later than 8:30 am on October 2, 2021 so 
your Proxy can be recognized at the meeting.  
 
 
There are no Special Resolutions proposed by the Board of Directors to be voted 
upon at this meeting. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com


Castle Mountain Community Association (CMCA) 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 
TAKE NOTICE THAT the 2021 annual general meeting (AGM) of CMCA will be 
held: 
 Date: Saturday, October 2, 2021 
 Time: 10 a.m.  
 Place: Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge 
 
We will ask all attendees to register upon entry, wear masks and respect any 
provincial health and social distancing recommendations in existence at the time. 
Masks and hand sanitizer will be available at the door.   
 
The meeting will also be broadcast via Zoom. If you wish to join the meeting via 
Zoom, please indicate such by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, 
prior to Wednesday, September 29 and a meeting invite will be directed to you. If 
you are attending via Zoom please arrange to cast your vote by Proxy using the 
form attached to this circular. 
 
We urge all members who cannot, or do not wish to, attend the meeting in 
person to make your preferences known by completing and returning the Proxy 
form contained in the attached file.   
 
A Proxy assigns your voting rights to another CMCA member and authorizes them 
to vote on your behalf.  
 
Proxies may be returned by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com by 
8:30 am on October 2, or may be delivered to the Meeting.  We ask that any 
Proxies being delivered to the Meeting arrive at the registration table no later 
than 9:30 am.   
  
IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR COMPLETED PROXY WILL 
HELP TO ENSURE WE HAVE A QUORUM (10% of paid membership – 18 people). 
 
The Board has brought forward no Special Resolutions to be voted on at this 
year’s AGM. 

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com


 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
We will conduct the business of this meeting as expeditiously as possible. The 
Agenda for the Meeting is: 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
2. Quorum confirmation 
3. Approval of minutes from CMCA’s 2020 AGM  
4. Financial report for 2021 
5. Auditor’s report 
6. Approval of 2021 financial statements  
7. Appointment of auditors for 2022 
8. Election of Directors 
9. Adjourn formal meeting 
10. Presentation by Executive 

 
There are four Directors to be elected this year for two year terms. The Board 
nominates Glenn Armstrong and Julie Heinrich. At least two Directors positions 
will be filled by nominations from the floor at the AGM meeting.    
 
Any member wishing to nominate a member as a candidate for Director, to be 
nominated from the floor at the meeting, you may do so by written notice by 
October 2 at 8:30 by email to: castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, or may do 
so in person at the meeting. 
 
Any member wishing to add an item to the Agenda is requested to provide 
written notice by Sept 29th, 2021, by email to: 
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com. 
 
If you have questions for the Board, please submit them to 
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com and we will respond by social media. 
 
 
 

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com


Castle Mountain Community Association (CMCA) 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 
TAKE NOTICE THAT the 2021 annual general meeting (AGM) of CMCA will be 
held: 
 Date: Saturday, October 2, 2021 
 Time: 10 a.m.  
 Place: Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge 
 
We will ask all attendees to register upon entry, wear masks and respect any 
provincial health and social distancing recommendations in existence at the time. 
Masks and hand sanitizer will be available at the door.   
 
The meeting will also be broadcast via Zoom. If you wish to join the meeting via 
Zoom, please indicate such by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com, 
prior to Wednesday, September 29 and a meeting invite will be directed to you. If 
you are attending via Zoom please arrange to cast your vote by Proxy using the 
form attached to this circular. 
 

Information Circular 
 
PROXIES   
 
We urge all members who cannot, or do not wish to, attend the meeting in 
person to make your preferences known by completing and returning the 
attached Proxy form.   See Attachment #1.  
 
A Proxy assigns your voting rights to another CMCA member and authorizes them 
to vote on your behalf.  
 
Proxies may be returned by email to castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com by 
8:30 am on October 2, or may be delivered to the Meeting.  We ask that any 
Proxies being delivered to the Meeting arrive at the registration table no later 
than 9:30 am.   
  

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com


IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR COMPLETED PROXY WILL 
HELP TO ENSURE WE HAVE A QUORUM (10% of paid membership or 18 people). 
 
The Board has brought forward no Special Resolutions to be voted on at this 
year’s AGM. 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 
We will conduct the business of this meeting as expeditiously as possible. The 
Agenda for the Meeting is: 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
2. Quorum confirmation 
3. Approval of minutes from CMCA’s 2020 AGM  
4. Financial report for 2021 
5. Auditor’s report 
6. Approval of 2021 financial statements  
7. Appointment of auditors for 2022 
8. Election of Directors 
9. Adjourn formal meeting 
10. Presentation by Executive 

 
Any member wishing to add an item to the Agenda is requested to provide 
written notice by Sept 29th, 2021, by email to: 
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com. 
 
If you have questions for the Board, please submit them to 
castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com and we will respond by social media. 
 

NOTICE ATTACHMENTS 
 
PROXY form 
 
The AGM Proxy form is provided as Att. #1.  Please complete and return this form 
if you will not be attending the AGM in person. 
 
 

mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com
mailto:castlemountaincommunity@gmail.com


Minutes 
 
The Minutes of CMCA’s 2020 meeting are provided as Att. #2 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT OPINION 
 
CMCA’s summary audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 
and the audit opinion there on are provided as Att. #3 
 
The financial statements were audited by Gerry De Leeuw and Julie Heinrich who 
reviewed the statements and accounts and report that the statements accurately 
reflect the financial results of CMCA for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021.  
 
Gerry and Julie have offered to act as auditors for the coming year, again with no 
remuneration. 
 

ELECTION 
 
The future of CMCA is critically dependent upon the enthusiasm and engagement 
of its Board of Directors. The Board is composed of nine members.  In order to 
ensure continuity, four board members are elected in one year and five the next 
year.  
 
 
The five CMCA board members who were elected in 2020 and accordingly will 
continue their terms until the next AGM in 2022 are:  
 Ray Bussey 
 Judy Clark (Seleski) 
 Glenn Downey 
 Tara Garratt 
 Kevin Finn 
  
The four CMCA board members who were in elected in 2019, and whose terms 
therefore are up this year, are: 
 

Glenn Armstrong 



 Julie Heinrich 
 Caralee Marriot 
 Fraser Stewart 
 
The following CMCA members have put their names forward, for election or re-
election this year, to the CMCA Board of Directors: 
  

Glenn Armstrong 
 Julie Heinrich 
 
 
FYI:   The CMCA board hugely thanks Fraser Stewart and Caralee Marriott for their 
service. Caralee will remain as the editor of The Liftline, while the Stewarts have 
retired to Lethbridge to begin a new chapter in their lives.   
 
At the AGM, Glenn and Julie will be nominated by the Board. Subsequently, 
nominations from the floor will be solicited.  
 
Should there be more than two nominations from the floor, an election will be 
held by ballot. Should there be two or fewer nominations from the floor, the 
forgoing Members and nominees shall be proclaimed as directors.  
 
We encourage any members of CMCA in good standing who wish to run for 
election as a Director to notify Kevin Finn by email or telephone 
(kvn.finn@gmail.com, 403-809-3393) prior to the Meeting or, in person, when 
nominations are called for at the Meeting.  
  

mailto:kvn.finn@gmail.com


 
 

ADDENDUM 
 
MEMBERS AT LARGE 
 
We encourage interested CMCA Members to volunteer to be Members at Large 
of the CMCA Board.  Members at Large are non-executive members with no 
specific duties or responsibilities who are invited to attend Board meetings, 
receive agendas and minutes, and may be asked to provide advice to the Board 
and sit on committees. 
 
VOLUNTEERS 
 
CMCA is extremely reliant on a pool of active volunteers who are willing to work a 
few (or more!) hours a year to improve the community. Watch for emails and 
signups from CMCA, and the various community social media platforms to 
discover opportunities to make Castle an even better place to be.       
 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
CMCA Board of Directors 
August 12, 2021 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



Attachment 2 
 

Castle Mountain Community Association  
Annual General Meeting  

Date: September 26, 2020   
Time: 10:00 am  
Location: Westcastle Room, CMR Day Lodge  

“If you love to live, work or play here you are a member of our community”  

CMCA Mission: Castle Mountain Community Association is committed to promoting 
a family oriented, safe and sustainable community experience for its members 
and  visitors in our unique alpine setting.  

CMCA Vision: A vibrant community sustained through collaborative partnerships, 
shared values and common interests.  

CMCA Goals:  
∙ Expand membership/enhance member engagement  
∙ Enhance community connectivity  
∙ Develop community recreation potential  
∙ Environmental stewardship  
∙ Community beautification  
∙ Develop fundraising capacity  
∙ Encourage development of community infrastructure plan  
∙ Represent member interests effectively to CMR and external interest groups  

Minutes  

1. Call to Order:   
The Annual General Meeting of the Castle Mountain Community, was called to 
order at 10:00 am.  

2. Quorum Confirmation:  
Attendance is comprised of 21 proxies and 13 community members in 
attendance to a total of 34 members.  
Motion by Ray Bussey and seconded by Judy Clark that the 34 members 
have exceded Quorum requirements.  

Motion Carried. 
3. Approval of the Agenda:  

Motion by Fraser Stewart and Seconded by Anne Whiteside to approve 
the Agenda.  



Motion Carried.  

4. Approval of the Minutes from the CMCA’s 2019 AGM:  
Motion by Glenn Armstrong, and seconded by Larry Cooper to approve 
the minutes from the 2019 Annual General Meeting.  

Motion Carried.  

5. Financial Report:  
A full Audited Financial Statement was emailed to community members prior to 
the AGM.  

6. Auditors Report: 

The Auditors report that the Financial Statements fairly represent the results of 
the Association’s operations for the year ended March 31, 2020  

 

7. Approval of 2020 Financial Statements  

Glenn Downey reviewed the Audited Financial Statement.  
Motion by Fraser Stewart, and seconded by Larry Kundrik to approve 
Financial  Statements.   

Motion Carried.  

8. Appointment of Auditors for 2021:  
Motion by Glenn Downey, and seconded by Fraser Stewart to 
appoint Gerry De leeuw and Julie Heinrich as the Auditors for 2021.  

Motion Carried.  

9. Review/Approval of updated by-laws for CMCA:  
The updated bylaws were sent out to the community members prior to the AGM 
for  their review. 

 
Motion by Ray Bussey, and seconded by Larry Kindrik to approve the Special 
Resolution containing the updated by laws for the CMCA as presented to the 
community members with the following revision;  
11.5.1 CMCA members can also vote by proxy. The proxy ballot shall list all 
resolutions proposed by the Board and provide space for the member to vote for 
or against each resolution. In addition the ballot shall allow the member the choice 



to assign their vote on any additional motions brought forth from the floor to another 
member in good standing.  
11.5.2 A member in good standing attending the AGM can only vote a maximum of 
six proxy votes only on such additional motions from the floor.  

Motion Carried,  

Special Resolution Approved  

10. Election of Directors:  

The four CMCA Board Members who were elected in 2019, and will continue 
their terms until the next AGM in 2021 are: Glenn Armstrong, Julie Heinrich, 
Caralee Marriot and Fraser Stewart.  

The following CMCA Members have put their names forward for re-election 
are; Ray Bussey, Judy Clark, Glenn Downey, Tarra Garratt, and Kevin Finn.  

Kevin thanked both Sheri Herold and Monica Stewart for their work on the 
CMCA Board.  

Kevin called for nominations from the floor, and there were no nominations 
from the floor.  

Motion by Glenn Armstrong, and seconded by Larry Cooper to approve 
the following as the Board of Directors for 2021 Glenn Armstrong, Julie 
Heinrich,  Caralee Marriot, Fraser Stewart, Ray Bussey, Judy Clark, Glenn 
Downey, Tarra  Garratt, and Kevin Finn.  

Motion Carried. 
11. Dieter Award:  

Kevin described the role Dieter played in making Castle Mountain a special 
place. Kevin revealed this year’s recipient for the Dieter Award – Julie Heinrich.  

12. Adjournment:  
The meeting was adjourned at 10:28 am by Fraser. 

 

 



  





  



  



 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
of the 

Agricultural Service Board – Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 16, 2021 – Airport Terminal 

Present: Chair Frank Welsch, Councillor Terry Yagos and Members David 
Robbins, Anna Welsch, and Martin Puch  

Also Present: Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, 
Agricultural Fieldman Shane Poulson, Executive Assistant Jessica 
McClelland, and contractor Kelly Cooley.  

Absent: Councillor Bev Everts and Councillor Quentin Stevick 

Chair Frank Welsch called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm.  

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

David Robbins 21/029 

Moved that agenda for June 16, 2021 be amended to include the Provincial ASB under 
New Business, 

AND THAT the agenda be approved as amended. 

Carried 

B. TOUR OF AES FACILITIES

ASB toured the Agricultural Environmental Services facilities around the airport area,
including the chemical shed and the area where weeds are collected for proper burning and 
disposal. 

C. DELEGATION

D. MINUTES

Martin Puch 21/030 

Moved that the minutes of April 7, 2021 be approved as presented. 

Carried 

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

Shane Poulsen discussed the regulation on dugout filling with the Board. 

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Anna Welsch 21/031 

F3b



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes  
June 16, 2021  

Page 2 
 
Moved that the ASB accept Kelly Coolys update on the potential Alternative Land Use 
System (ALUS) funding and program be accepted as information, and is attached to and 
forming part of these minutes. 
 

Carried 
 

G. 2021 AES DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 

Anna Welsch       21/032 
 
Moved to accept the departmental report from the Agricultural Fieldman for April and May 
2021. 
 

Carried  
 
H. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. For Action 
 
a. Resolution Responses and Grading sheets 

 
Board was directed to contact Shane directly, by June 30, 2021, if they had any 
changes they wanted to see for the resolution responses and grading sheet. 

 
2. For Information  
 
David Robbins      21/033 
 
Moved that the following be received as information: 
 

a. Loss of Registration of 2% Strychnine  
• Letter of Concern – Cypress County 

b. Fusarium gran free label - resolution 5-21 opportunity for feedback 
• Letter to Agricultural Service Board Provincial Committee  

c. Concerns on Resolution Process During Provincial ASB Conference  
• Letter from ASB Provincial Committee 

d. Alberta Ag Downloading  
• Letter of Concern from County of Grande Prairie No. 1  

e. Crop Prairie Pest Monitoring Network Information & Insect Diagnostics  
• Email from Agriculture and Forestry  

f. Moisture Situation Update as of May 26, 2021 
• Synopsis 
• Map 1 Precipitation Over 8-days 
• Map 2 Frost-lower Temp over 5 days 
• Map 3 Total Hours Below Freezing 
• Map 4 30-day Precipitation Accumulations  
• Map 5 30-day Precipitation Accumulations  

 



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes  
June 16, 2021  

Page 3 
Carried 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Alberta Coal Policy Committee 
 
Alberta Coal Policy Committee was discussed, it was suggested that the panel include a 
member of the agricultural community. Suggestion was made to bring the information from the 
coal policy committee to the next ASB meeting in September.  
 
Provincial ASB 
 
Frank Welsch updated the board on the virtual Town hall he attended on June 15, 2021. At 
present time there are no longer key contacts with the Province, we now have a Regional Liason 
to assist in communicating between boards and the Province.  
  
J. NEXT MEETING 
 
September 1, 2021  

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Martin Puch      21/034 
  

Moved to adjourn the meeting, the time being 3:52 pm. 
 
        Carried 
 
 
 _____________________________  ________________________________ 
 ASB Chairperson    ASB Secretary 



F3c



















G1a















2021-09-08

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

3002 Division 1 NE26 T4 R30 W4 #3015 TWP4-5 No maintenance on snow fence for years, Bison in field Bison no 
longer there,RQ maintenance RR30-1

Tony N To Be completed March 15, 2021 Roger asked us to wait later this summer has the 
field stay wet. On list to do 

-

3004 Division 4 WC Ranches by  Glider Strip To put in another approach & possible culvert Jonathan - March 31, 2021 will be completed when available, not a priority -

3010 Division 3 SE15 T6 R2 W5 - Premanent snow fence needs repair Eric Completed May 19, 2021 On the Permanent snow fence list, Tony N to assess. August 19, 2021

3020 Division 1 St Henrys - Brush need cutting / Maintenance Jonathan - June 3, 2021 talk to him, told him we would do it in the winter -

3036 Division 1 NW15 T5 R30 W4 RR30-3 Culvert concerns Jonathan - June 14, 2021 Culvert will need cleaning and rip rap, would be 
done later in the fall / Sept.

-

3044 Division 4 SE28 T8 R29 W4 - Requesting roadside grass mowing Crew Completed June 21, 2021 will be added to mowing list August 24, 2021

3048 Division 5 SE27 T7 R2 W5 #2219 Driveway grading and Driveway mowing Crew - June 23. 2021 will be added to mowing list -

3068 Division 5 Maycroft Road RR2-4 into their place Has a "Dead End Sign" but would like a "No thru Road Sign"
at the junction of the Maycroft Road 

Eric - July 12, 2021 Will be added to the sign List -

3072 Division 5 SW27 T7 R2 W5 #2322 Hwy 3 Lundbreck Falls RQ to cut grass on driveway Crew - July 13, 2021 will be added to mowing list -

3081 Division 3 SE2 T6 R1 W5 #6016 RR1-1 RQ to have driveway graded / Christies Mines and Toney Drive Tony T Completed July 20, 2021 Had filled out a form but didn’t realize he still had to 
call in the request the work 

August 23, 2021

3086 Division 3 SW15 T5 R1 W5 #5202 RR1-3A Steep Hill uniproved road is starting to wash away and is a 
concern. Also grass cutting is requested 

Crew - July 22, 2021 will be added to mowing list -

3087 Division 2 RR29-4 North of Sproule 
feed lot 

at 1st Texas Gate would like a "No Throu Road/Dead End "Sign 
GPS systems have incorrect info & people are getting lost 

Jonathan - July 22, 2021 Will be added to the sign List -

3093 Division 2 - -
Memo from AdMin re snow fence on his property needs repair
calf got its head stuck in the boards

Tony N Completed July 27  & Aug 10 - August 19, 2021

3095 Division 3 SW21 T5 R2 W5 #2330 TWP5-3 RQ GRASS MOWING same as previous years Crew - July 27, 2021 Will be added to the mowing list -

3102 Division 5 NW21 T9 R2 W5 #9317 RR2-4 Looking for update on culvert issue Jonathan - August 3, 2021 called on August 9, 2021 defered to September -

3122 Division 3 SW13 T6 R1 W5 #6205 RR1-1 off 507 Would like driveway graded Tony T Completed August 16, 2021 - August 24, 2021

3123 Division 1 NW12 T5 R30 W4 #30021 YWP5-2 Would like driveway graded Brian Completed August 16, 2021 - August 23, 2021

3124 Division  5 Talon Peakes - Wondering when grader isin the area why the road doesn’t get 
touched up from the new gravel and dust control 

Eric Completed August 16, 2021 Grader was in this location Sept 07, 2021 September 7, 2021

3126 Division 3 - - Would like a sign No thru Road at RR1-2 Eric/Don - August 16, 2021 Will be added to the sign List -

3127 Division 1 NW30 T4 R28 W4 #4421 RR29-0 Would like driveway graded Brian Completed August 17, 2021 - August 23, 2021

3128 Division 1 NE24 T4 R30 W4 #4328 RR30-0 Would like driveway graded MOVING to new place 
(Dianne Gregorys former place)

Brian Completed August 17, 2021 - August 23, 2021



2021-09-08

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

3129 Division 1 NE22 T4 R29 W4 #29215Hwy 505 Would like to arrange for getting gravel out of Bruder Pit Eric - August 17, 2021 - -

3130 Division 4 - Boat Club Asking to have road to BoatClub graded Eric Completed August 17, 20221 - August 19, 2021

3131 Lundbreck 426 - 1st Street - After new road work and culvet still a drainage problem & 
wanted grass cut between Trailer Park & 1st Ave (Betty)

Eric - August 18, 2021 Called a few time, having hard time to connect with 
each other 

-

3132 Division 3 NE13 T6 R1 W5 #6218  RR1-0 off Hwy 507 Road needs grading (by Dale Stuckeys) Kathy Days property Tony T Completed August 18, 2021 - August 30, 2021

3133 Division 4 - RR29-1 Reported roads needing maintenance Up towards Campbells 
and RR29-1 off Hwy785 

Shawn Completed August 18, 2021 - September 7, 2021

3134 Division 3 NE1 T6 R2 W5 #6019 RR2-1A Gladstonew Valley road needs maintenance Tony T Completed August 19, 2021 - August 31, 2021

3135 Division 5 - RR2-1A RQ Hill from McCulloch Pit to Fisher Bridge be graded Tony T Completed August 23, 2021 - August 24, 2021

3136 Airport - - Lights are disappearing in the grass along runway MOWING Eric Completed August 25, 2021 - August 26, 2021

3137 Division 3 NE1 T6 R2 W5 #6019 RR2-1A Requested driveway grading  - By Stillmans Tony T Completed August 25, 2021 - August 30, 2021

3138 Division 1 SW4 T4 R29 W4 #29326 TWP4-6 Re wanting to clean ditch for drainage to direct water from his 
property to drain into the culvert 

Jonathan - August 30, 2021 Meet with him, might have to wait till spring 2022 -

3139 Division 4 SW16 T8 R29 W4 RR8-2 
On Welsch Road south of the feed lot Fortis took out a power 
pole & keft a mound of dirt which will likely cause drifting 
it should be removed before the snow flies 

He asked for
Aaron  

Completed August 30, 2021 Fortis has been contacted September 2, 2021

3140 Division 4 SE29 T8 R1 W5 - Wanting the grass seed to be put in Jonathan - August 30, 2021 AES Waiting for seed, should be completed this 
week 

-

3141 Division 3 Across from 
Mr Zoratti 

RR1-3 North off Hwy 507 can road be graded Tony T Completed August 30, 2021 - August 31, 2021

3142 Division3 NE30 & Se30 
T6 R1 W5 

#1427 TWP6-4 
Snowfence needs fixed or removed  and road is full of 
washboard and loose gravel /no operator knows how to grade 
according to Sue  

Tony T Completed August 30, 2021 - August 31, 2021

3143 Division 4 SW16 T9 R1 W5 #9205 RR1-4 Dumpster has been dumped by driveway and will be in the way Jonathan Completed August 31, 2021 - August 31, 2021

3144 Division 4 NE36 T8 R30 W4 #30016 TWP8-4 They are having a concert on the weekend and would like they 
road and driveway graded 

Jonathan Completed September 1, 2021 Will need to be done September 2 September 2, 2021

3145 Division 3 Intersection RR2-1B & TWP5-5 By Everts Bus driver complaining poor visability  because of 
trees 

Jonathan Completed September 1, 2021 Would require a lot of big trees to be cut down, will 
consider installing a stop sign instead

September 7, 2021

3146 Division 4 41 Walking Plow
Acres

- Inquiring about gravel and wanting driveway graded Shawn - August 24, 2021 Shawn looked at it. Will need to be completed in the 
spring if she wants to buy gravel. 

September 8, 2021

3147 Division 4 SE14 T7 R29 W4 #29115 TWP7-2A Requesting new Cattle Guard Jonathan Completed September 2, 2021 - September 2, 2021

3148 Division 5 NW20 T9 R2 W5 #2425 TWP9-4 Concerned about the muskrats causing problems  and would 
likesomeone to have a look 

Jonathan Completed September 2, 2021 - September 7, 2021

3149 Division 1 NW36 T3 R29 W4 #3531 RR29-1 Needs a phone call re Dust Control  in previous years has been done 
by MD not this year  

Eric - September 2, 2021 Called and left message -

3150 Division 3 SW14 T05 R01 W5M - Requested Driveway grading and Approach location approval. Eric Completed September 2, 2021 Approach approved on Sept 02 and grading 
completed Sept 08, 2021

September 8, 2021



2021-09-08

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

3151 Division 1 RR29-2 - requesting flags/signs at Railroad crossing on RR29-2 Eric - September 7, 2021 Josh was in contact with CPR Sept 07, 2021 -

3152 Division 2 RR29-4 - Requesting grading on Crook road and RR29-4 Tony T Completed September 7, 2021 - September 8, 2021

3153 Division 2 SE15 T5 R29 W4 - Requesting Kerr road and RR29-4 to be graded Tony T Completed September 7, 2021 - September 8, 2021

3154 - - - Asking how to get overweight permits forMD roads
process seems to have changed 

John/Eric Completed September 7, 2021 Process hasn’t changed, permit request need to go 
to road data for approval 

September 7, 2021

3155 Division 5 - - Requesting school signs on highway to Castle just out of 
Beaver Mines 

- Completed September 7, 2021 Has called before and was referred to call Volker September 7, 2021

3156 Lundbreck 219 - 3 Street - Had sewerback up stated plumber said it was Main line  problem
wanted to give us the plumber bill 

Randy Completed September 7, 2021 Checked with plumber and he never said it was 
a main line  issue so no not the MD responsibilty

September 7, 2021

3157 Division 3 NE10 T6 R30 W4 - Fairy new install snow fence has board coming appart Eric - September 7, 2021 To be repaired -

3158 Division 2 NW16 T6 R28 W4 #6223 RR28-4 Would like her driveway mowed Mowing crew - September 7, 2021 Glen & Topher advised and they have noted 
her request 

-

3159 Division 2 NW20 T5 R28 W4 #28417 TWP5-4 Was promised dust control this year which didn’t happen
after culvert work 

Eric - September 8, 2021 - -

Indicates  Defered to Spring

indicates On the To Do List  

Indicates Completed



AES, August, 2021 

• August 2, STAT
• August 3, Grasshopper Count, Staff Planning (Budget)
• August 4, records and billing, river inspections & control (Castle)
• August 5, Budget, river inspections & control (Oldman)
• August 9, AES Safety Meeting, river inspections & control (Crowsnest)
• August 10, Crop Report – drought conditions has made this more important as many MD’s in

province are declaring disaster. We have had enough rain to make crops about average or above
in most of the municipality

• August 11, Hoary Cress, Blueweed, Spotted Knapweed assessment on provincial land around the
Oldman Reservoir, river inspections & control (Oldman)

• August 12, Canola field inspections, informal, around gate areas, noticeable problem areas just
looking for Clubroot

• August 16, fertilized admin lawn & Patton Park, before it rained an inch or more (2 – 4 inches
across MD by end of the 17th),

• August 17, crew work plans for 2022, Gravel Pits (all crews)
• August 18, Nodding Thistle, weed inspections Division #1, staff planning (Budget)
• August 19, Diffuse Knapweed, Premix, MD Appreciation Lunch
• August 23, Canola field inspections (informal, around gate areas, noticeable problem areas)
• August 24, Nodding Thistle, Canola field inspections, formal, stems cut & sent in and roots cut

and sent in
• August 25, Budget, reporting, equipment work (mostly livestock equipment for fall use)
• August 26, last day for five summer staff, safety review (for departing staff)
• August 30, 31, Fall Spraying – hot summer and August rains have made perfect conditions for

Fall Spraying to begin early.  As such, I’ve included September below.

Sincerely,  

Shane Poulsen, 
Agricultural Services Manager 

G3a



AES, September, 2021 
 

• September 1 – 30, Fall Weed Program, included because it’s already started in August.  Not 
trying to rush summer but drought + heavy August rains are making “fall” spraying early this 
year!  I’ve included the South Region Conference on October 6 because elections might make 
planning this more difficult. 

o Hoary Cress, fall spraying on some patches, began in August, focus on OMRD area 
o Wild Caraway, no evidence of regrowth yet (August 19), may happen with recent rains 
o Dame’s Rocket, one patch to consider otherwise done 
o Spotted Knapweed, will be germination in any patches that have potentially seeded out 

any time in the last several years so excellent fall spray opportunities 
o Hawkweed, will use extensive fall spraying in Forestry areas 
o Scentless Chamomile, no regrowth yet 
o Field Scabious, mostly done, will monitor Waterton River area for fall control options 
o Oxeye Daisy, fall spraying, largely in Forestry areas but also along roads and in focus 

areas this year, I expect seed germination to occur after the heavy August rains  
o Tall Buttercup, will be opportunities for fall spraying this year (due to drought conditions 

and then heavy August rains) 
o Perennial Sowthistle, extensive this year, will spray with every opportunity this fall 
o Canada Thistle, getting fall regrowth while it’s going to seed in some areas, will be 

spraying with every opportunity (weather permitting) 
o Dalmatian Toadflax, biocontrol was widespread this year, feeding damage evident up 

until mid-August  
o Common Mullein, re-visit and spray fall growth especially in Forestry  
o Field Bindweed, calls for control options but done on MD lands 
o Common Tansy, deadheading and spraying 
o Queen Annes Lace, picking and spraying (still flowering in some cases) 
o Blueweed, all patches revisited and sprayed 
o Nodding Thistle, Plumeless Thistle, check for late flowering and for any germination 

after spraying or picking   
• September 1, PW Safety Meeting, ASB Meeting 
• September 1 – 30, Roadside Spraying, Canada Thistle, Perennial Sow Thistle 
• September 1 – 30, Alberta Parks fall spraying 
• September 1 – 30, SRD-VPL fall spraying (if budget allows) 
• September 1 – 30, Gravel Pits with Blueweed revisited 
• September 1 – 30, BW sites revisited 
• September 2, items from ASB, Asset Management meeting, ALUS Tour 
• September 6, STAT 
• September 7, Crop Report, Clubroot & Blackleg Survey, starting fall spraying on Water Pipeline 
• September 8, AES Safety Meeting, AES site safety inspection, Asset Management Update  
• September 9, Joint Health & Safety Committee Meeting, reporting, inspections 
• September 13, resolution due to South Region Committee Secretary, Safety Binder 
• September 14, South Region AAAF Meeting, Brooks 
• September 15, rental equipment, billing, Parks report  
• September 16, last ten hour day (too dark in morning), dams (work and reporting) 
• September 20, eight hour days/five day weeks start 
• September 21 – 24, grass seeding (several spots in MD) 



• September 27, SWIM meeting 
• September 30, ASB October package, Premix 
• October 1, last day for two crew  
• October 6, ASB South Region Conference, Cardston 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Shane Poulsen,  
Agricultural Fieldman  
 



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: Agriculture and Environmental Services Department 
Veresis Intelli-spray Weed Sprayer Purchase Timing 

PREPARED BY: Roland Milligan 

DEPARTMENT: AES 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Department Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DATE: September 9, 2021 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Date 

APPROVALS: 

Date 

That Council approve $20,000 in funds for an Intelli-spray Weed Sprayer in 2021, with said funds 
coming through the Equipment Reserve (6-12-0-752-6740). 

BACKGROUND: 
• The purchase of two Veresis Intelli-spray 9TDE Twin Reel pick-up box mounted weed sprayers 

are required for the Agricultural and Environmental Services department. 
• Both sprayers have been included in budget planning for 2021 and 2022. The 2021 purchase was 

approved with the adoption of the 2021 municipal budget last year. The request for the second 
unit was presented to Council Committee, for a cost of $20,000, on August 24, 2021 . The 
purchase was "approved in principal" during this meeting for the 2022 budget. 

• The department was unable to order the 2021 unit as the company was not shipping full units due 
to the Covid-19 situation. 

• If the MD proceeds with the Intelli-spray Weed Sprayer purchase as outlined in the 2022 proposed 
budget, AES will be unable to make this purchase until after January 1, 2022. 

• Due to the ordering and process, approving the expenditure in 2021, will allow the department to 
order both units at the end of September with delivery in April 2022. In time for preparation for 
the 2022 weed spraying season. 

Presented to: Council Page 1 of 2 
Date of Meeting: September 14, 2021 

G3b



Recommendation to Council 

PFWDUC 

. ~--' l' .. ·:.,. ... .-.~- ... ·. 
: .,,, .. ' f.:· . ...., 

9TDE TWIN REEL .. ~ 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
$20,000 

Presented to: Council 
Date of Meeting: September 14, 2021 

Designed for prolesslonol controctors, the twin reel model Is designed for 

two operators to work at the same time, covering twice the amount of 

ground. The 9T0E model is designed to maximise space on your vehicle 

or trailer. 
This space-saving design allows the reels to be positioned above the pump 

ond motor to ollow for o shorter overoll length. 

TtnkSize-

framework 

Motor 

Pump 

Reel 

Hose 

Pressure Controller 

Nozzle 

600L to 2400t UV stab1h1td tank.Available with or without 

tank 

Hard, powder coated slip on framework with bolt down points 

9HP Genume- Honda OHV motor with eledrC start and IOamp 
elednc charge coil 

Bt>rtolinl PA730 triple diaphragm pump (70l/mtn. 580psi 
mu} 

Twm reel wrth Independent re-mote c.ontrolled rewind 
freQuenc,es 

Up to 200m of 3/8• ID Supa-Sllp• hose per rttl 

4 outlet Shn9 prenure controller with gauge 

Turbo-400 gun with swavrl and adiustable spray pattern. 
Sin9lf- hand operation 

Page 2 of 2 



TITLE: 
Applicant: 
Location 
Division: 
Size of Parcel: 
Zoning: 
Development: 

Recommendation to Council 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. 2021-58 

1077841 Alberta Ltd. 
SE 12-7-3 W5M (Hiawatha Campground) 
5 
64 ha (160 acres) 
Direct Control - DC 
Attached Garage to Existing Manufactured Home 

PREPARED BY: Roland Milligan DATE: September 9, 2021 

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development 

Signature: ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Development Permit Application No. 2021-58 
2. Site Plan 

APPROVALS: 

Roland Milligan 0 

Department Director Date Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Development Permit No. 2021-58, for the development of an attached garage, be approved, 
subject to the following Condition(s) and Variance(s): 

Condition(s): 

1. That this development meets the minimum provisions as required in Land Use Bylaw 1289-18. 

BACKGROUND: 
- On August 6, 2021 the MD received Development Permit Application No. 2021-58, for the 

development of an attached garage to an existing manufactured home to within the SE 12-7-3 
W5M. 

- This application is being placed in front of Council because: 
- Within the Direct Control - DC Land Use District, Council is the development authority for all 

proposed uses. 
- The proposed location of the garage meets the setback requirements of the land use district. 
- Pursuant to Section 18.13(b) of the Land Use Bylaw, the application was forwarded to the adjacent 

landowners for comment, no responses were received at the time of preparing this report. 

Presented to Council Page 1 of 2 
Date of Meeting: September 14, 2021 

G3c



Presented to Council 

Recommendation to Council 

Location of Proposed Development 

Date of Meeting: September 14, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 



Attachment No. 1 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek 
P.O. Bo:1279 

Plac:her Creek, AB TOK IW0 
Phone: 403.627.3130 • Fu: 403.627.5070 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION 
All grey areas will be completed by the Planning Authority .--

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPUCATION NO. o2ocQ.I --;,"k

A. ·-- "T\11 Date Application Rec:eind t/(1 lo/lJ PERMIT FIE .. ,.........,� 
Date Appllc:ation Accepted � 1'(2 { RECEIPT NO. S, NJ()
Tu Roll# $/38, QIQ 
IW'ORT,INT: fflu ,,,.,_,lolt-, tlbo N '611mlwldt #lplllflllrltUf ,-,_,, _,..,,.au Ollll-,oho H..,,, Olf/i/1 '1 ,,._ IIJffl'II& 
7111, ,,,,_,_-, o/,o 6s -4 iy lllldfor •1 Of' oil�,,,,..,,,, 1111d .,,...,_ ,,._ .,,,_,,,,,,.,. ,..tat,,tjll, --.a will.
llWlllaW, IO,_ p,,/,lk tllftl ore n,6J«t to • pn,,1.-, a(dw F,.._,,, tf lt{orNI/Olt arl "-11• tt/ Prl-Mq At/ (FOIi). f,oa l,nc Oll1 
,.._ ... coli«llon tf/1"6 ..,.... ,._ ffllllllt:l tlM ""11/dJM/ Dlltrlt/ a(,,,,.,. Crnk No. 9 

! SICl10N 1: GINER.AL IIGORMATION

Al5 Ltd Applicant: f Q 17 f 4 I

Owner of und (If different from abow): _________________ _ 

Address: __________________ Telephone: ____ _ 

Interest of Applicant (lfaot the..,..,): _________________ _ 

I SEC'ltON 2: PROPOSED D&VILOPMENT 

I/We hereby mike application lbr a Development Permit under the provisions of Land Use Bylaw No. in accordance 
with the plans and supporting information submitted herewith and which forms pan of this application. 

A brief dac:riptlon or the proposed dtftlopment ii •• follows: 

fa odd Ctfft1cl,,d 'f,Ul'fl {14' tai· ·,11 r) lo
mabilt, bomt· 

Lea•I Delc:rlpdon: Lat(,) ____________________ _ 

Block ____________________ _ 

Plan ____________________ _ 

QuarterSectioa S6:. l�-D:I -o.3 WS- · · 
711 (p , �'!,30 

r..ttmatec1 eommeac:ement o.te: All6 u5t Is; .::,� I 
Esdmated Completion Date: b6Ch-Mf> f:e 30, 24/--/
Municipal District of Pincbcr Creek No. 9 Page I of4 



Attachment No. 1 

I SECTION J: SITE REQUIREMENTS 

Land Use District: J:> C.. J:>1 R.£c.T Co.,trtD L- Division: _ __.5 ___ _ 
D Permitted Use D Discretionary Us@ 

Is the proposed development site within 100 metres of a swamp, gully, ravine, coulee, natural draina2e course 
or floodplain? 

D Yes ~ 
Is the proposed development below a licenced dam? 

• Yes ~ 
II the proposed development site situated on a slope? 

)ZJYes ~o 

If yes, approximately how many degrees of slope? _...:;;{e_.. degrees 

Has the applicant or a previous registered owner undertaken a slope stability study or geotechnical 
evaluation of the proposed development site? 

D Yes D No _,.P-"Oon't know D Not required 

Could the proposed development be impacted!¥ a geographic feature or a waterbody? 
D Yes O No _p-1)on't think so 

a,.,..,..._:.,,~. ti'fl By Law 
BUI DING Proposed 

Recurirements 
Confonns 

(1) Area of Site Aofn)X -IC(/1... '{)' - -
(2) Area of Building ~M' i1~1i .. i ~. -"9 -
(3) %Site Coverage by Building (within Hamets) N/A . - -
(4) Front Yard Setback - I ?:1'- y~ Direction Facin2: ,. . - . , zf?Q"':' 
(5) Rear Yard Setback I I I 

7A'-. Direction Facing: ~ 1--n,,,( s2n- Y.G=-5 
(6) Side Yard Setback: ,_,,, • J,., l • 

~~ Ver Direction Facin2: -~-7. 6:e>-
(7) Side Yard Setback: 

&lj'~'! 
. /~,(,_' ?/f,_ Y&-r Direction Facing: ' 

(8) Height of Building I I I ,v/4 -
(9) Number of Off Street Parking Spaces NIA . - -
Other Supporting Material Attached (e.g. site plan, architectural drawing) 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 Page 2 of4 



Attachment No. 1 

ACCESSORY BUILDING Proposed 
By Law Confonns 

Requirements 

(I) Area of Site NIA 
(2) Area of Building 

(3) % Site Coverage by Building (within Hamlets) 

(4) Front Yard Setback 
Direction Facing: 

(5) Rear Yard Setback 
Direction Facin2: 

(6) Side Yard Setback: 
Direction Facing: 

(7) Side Yard Setback: 
Direction Facin2: 

(8) Height ofBuilding 

(9) Number of Off Street Parking Spaces 

Other Supporting Material Attached (e.g. site plan, architectural drawing) 

I SECTION 4: DEMOLITION 

Type of building being demolished : ___ :N_._f_A __ . ________________ _ 
Area of size:. _ _______________________________ _ 

Type of demolition plaMed: _________________________ _ 

! SECTION 5: SIGNATURES (both signatures required) 

The information given on this form is full and complete and is, to the best ofmy knowledge, a true statement of the 
facts in relation to this application for a Development Permit. 

I also consent to an authorized person designated by the municip ity to enter upon the subject land and buildings for 
the purpose of an inspection during the processing of this applica n. 

DATE: 

Information on this application form will become art of a file which may be considered at a ublic meeting. 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No, 9 Page 3 of4 



• 
Al'v\E N DlD 

S tTf 
PLAN 

. , <-
o2~ ' 

4J 
I 

~ -::t: l 

~ 
1--
CJ 
'1 

) LoT-!l l 
'1iD 

(p, 

~vavt l berm 

Attachment No. 1 

W' 

CG 
2 
'< 
~ 

~ 

~o~ ~Eb 
~ilAqE 

r !4' 80.ra1e-
I 
I J7' 

h_gh t II ' 

- ~ --- -----==------



•·· . 
I '> ... ..;~_ ... - ..... ·~ . 

-'~- ----, ..... 
. ·- .· -_ .. - . ~ 

. . ... __ 

: -- .. 
Ill• • • .:,; 

Attachment No. 2 

~. ,' ~·-... . ' , 



Discussion 

Aug25 

Aug26 

Aug27 

Aug30 

Aug 31 

Sept 01- 03 
Sept 07 

Sept 08 

Sept 09 

Sept 10 

Sept 13 

Sept 14 

CIDEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 
Aug 25- Sept 14, 2021 

HR Meeting 
Staff Count Meeting for Ops Budget 
Lundbreck Paving Meeting - On Site 
Post Council and SMT (senior mgmt. team) Meeting 
Meeting with Reeve regarding PCESC 
Safety Budget Meeting 
IMDP Meeting 
Stand Pipe and ECO Station follow up meeting with Roland and AEP 
Finalize Land Negotiations and Contract for BM Stand Pipe 
Meeting with Roseke and Leo 
Meeting with Landowner, Roseke, Leo and Rolland for Screwdriver Creek BF 
Water and Waste Water Budget Meeting 
IT Budget Meeting 
ARMAA Conference 
Crop Loss Agreement for BM Project 
Asset Management Meeting 
Sub Division Meeting 
Salary Grid Meeting for Budget 
Beaver Mines Walk Through with MPE and Resident 
Joint Health and Safety Committee 
Aggregate Meeting with AEP 
Airport Meeting with Chair and Consultant 
Council Prep 
Water Crossing follow up with Fintegrate Consulting 
Meeting with RMA/Genesis Insurance 
SMT Meeting 
Water Operations Meeting 
Committee and Council Meetings 

• Numerous other meetings throughout this period to address any issues or tasks from the Aug. 25th 
meeting. 

Upcoming Meetings 

• Sept 15 - Joint Council with Town for Joint Funding 
• Sept 23 - Public Engagement Session for MDP 
• Sept 30 - ARMAA Regional Meeting in Lethbridge, AB 

G4a



RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer's report for the period August 25, 2021 -
September 14, 2021 . 

Prepared by: 

Respectfully presented to: 

Letters from last Council: 

Troy MacCulloch, CAO ffe 
Council 

1. Meeting request during RMA with Municipal Affairs 

2. Decline Foothills Little Bow additional resolutions 

Advertising/social: 

Road closure bylaw public hearing 1332-21 

Public meeting MDP 

Public Hearing MDP 

Other Admin action items 

MD Statement to Coal Committee - Submitted August 2021. 

MD of Pincher Creek No. 9 

Date: Sept 09, 2021 

Date: Sept 14, 2021 

The Vision of the Council of the MD of Pincher Creek is a cornrnunity that manages growth and supports our western 
heritage while preserving our natural environment. 

When we heard that there was an opportunity to voice our concerns on coal and its development within the Eastern Slopes, 
a number of thoughts irnrnediately came to mind. However, upon reflection and sorting through the various viewpoints, 
one theme became clear and that is our unyielding stewardship of our water. This is not just water for agriculture or human 
consumption, but water for recreation and our irreplaceable natural habitats. 

To think there was even a small chance of doing generational harm to this resource, is beyond comprehension for us. We 
are not against coal, but we are certainly firm in our resolve to protect what makes us uniquely SW Alberta; the natural 
beauty and abundance of wildlife and viewscapes, not to mention thriving cornrnunities and recreational spaces. We work 
hard to coexist within this region, to keep what is undeveloped as "untouched" as possible for all to enjoy, humans and 
animals alike and the one thing we all share is the water. Everything truly valued by us, begins and ends with our water. 

Our Council has heard from our residents and numerous groups within our cornrnunity and our voice is unified in this. 
There can be no development without risk to our headwaters and any risk to our water is simply not acceptable. For us and 
the generations that will come after us. 

Thank you for allowing us to add our voice to your engagement process. 

Respectfully, 

Reeve Brian C Harnrnond 
On behalf of the Residents and Council of the MD of Pincher Creek No. 9 



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Agenda 
Friday, September 17, 2021, 10:00 AM 

Continental Ballroom, Coast Hotel 
526 Mayor Magrath Dr S 

Lethbridge, AB 

1. Welcome and Introductions of Guests (10:00 AM)

2. Roll Call of persons present and Quorum

3. Agenda Additions

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Tribute to Members who passed

a. Hans Rutz (Lethbridge County)

b. Harlan Cahoon (Cardston County)

6. Adoption of the Minutes of the January 15, 2021 Foothills Little Bow meeting

7. Business arising from the Minutes

8. Greetings (10:30 AM) -

a. Greetings from the Government of Alberta

b. Greetings from the Official Opposition

c. Greetings from MLA's in Attendance

d. Greetings from MP's in Attendance

9. Association Updates (10:45 AM) -

a. RMA District 1 Director - Jason Schneider. District 1 Director, RMA

b. RMA President &Vice President - Paul Mclaughlin, President, RMA

c. RMA Governance Review - Gerald Rhodes, Executive Director, RMA
1

H1a



d. FCM Update

e. Update from Alberta Urban Municipalities Association

f. Alberta Transportation - Darren Davidson, Regional Director, South Region

10. Pre-lunch Presentation (11:40 AM) – Fortis

11. Lunch- Sponsored by Fortis (12:00 PM)

12. Post Lunch Presentation (1:00 PM) - University of Lethbridge- Enhanced Research and 

Funding Capacity.

13. Draft Bylaw Review (1:30 PM)

14. Resolution Session

a. Historical Resources Impact Assessments- Resolution FA-01-2021

Willow Creek MD

15. Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Financial Report -

a. Annual Membership fees

b. Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet Comparison

16. Adjournment (3:00 PM) 

NEXT MEETING DATE: January 21, 2022 

2



Tribute to member who passed away – Hans Rutz (Lethbridge County) 

October 27, 1933 - June 5, 2021 (age 87)

On Saturday, June 5, 2021, Hans slipped away peacefully, with his daughters by his side, to be 
reunited with his loving wife Margaret. He will be missed and loved forever.

Hansgeorg Paul Rutz was born October 27, 1933 in Breslau, Germany to Georg and Erna Rutz. 
The oldest of three boys, he grew up during WWII and lived a life of multiple situations that 
forced him to reinvent himself and forge on. He emigrated to Canada in May 1953 landing in 
southern Alberta to work on various farms. It was on one of these farms he met his future wife 
and love of his life Margaret Brown. They married in 1959 and were together just shy of 51 
years. They had four daughters and eight grandchildren. Dad was a person of intelligence and 
integrity. He served as a counselor for the County of Lethbridge for many years.  He also farmed 
at the same time, often getting up early to do the chores, going to meetings all day and coming 
home late. He was a long-time member of the Elks of Canada and the Masons. Public service 
was a job he took seriously and did to the highest of standards.

His greatest job and joy in life was his family. He and mom traveled to many places over the 
years. In his mind travel was never a waste of money but an investment in memories. They made 
sure their daughters each went to Germany to meet and see his family and experience life in his 
homeland. It was a gift he gave us all.

~Moment of Silence~ 

3



Tribute to member who passed away – Harlan Cahoon (Cardston County) 

passed September 2, 2021 (age 77)

Harlan Nilsson Cahoon passed away peacefully in the early morning hours of  September 2, 
2021 at the age of 77. He is survived by his loving wife, Jane Sabey Cahoon, his 6 children, 13 
grandchildren and 6 great grandchildren.

Harlan spent many years of his life as a successful businessman in Canmore. After selling his 
business he returned home with his family to Southern Alberta where he started a couple of new 
businesses. The success of this business was due to his hard work and his ability to talk to 
people, which he enjoyed doing.  If you knew Harlan, you were sure to get a phone call. He 
served the community for three terms on Council from 2001 to 2010 and left a lasting impact 
on the area due to his effort and service on several boards within the area. 

Harlan and his wife enjoyed 57 years of marriage before his passing. They loved to travel, 
especially to Mexico and Hawaii. They also cruised down the rivers of Europe, and each year 
you could find Harlan and Jane planning a trip. He served his family, his community, and his 
church for many years and will be missed. 

~Moment of Silence~ 

4



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Meeting Minutes 

Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association 
Minutes of the Meeting 

10:00 a.m., Friday, January 15, 2021 
By Zoom 

Member Municipal Districts & Counties 
Present: 

Cardston County M.D. of Pincher Creek
M.D. of Ranchlands County of Newell
Cypress County M.D. of Taber
Foothills County Vulcan County
County of Forty Mile County of Warner
Lethbridge County M.D. of Willow Creek

Regrets: 
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass  

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit, called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.

2. ROLL CALL OF PERSONS PRESENT AND QUORUM

Roll Call was taken and representatives of all Municipal Districts and Counties were accounted
for except for the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass.

3. AGENDA ADDITIONS

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit asked if there were any additions to the January 15th agenda.
Anne Marie Philipsen, County of Newell added “Chairing Meetings.”

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

145/21 
MOVED: Molly Douglas, County of Newell 
That the agenda of January 15, 2021 be approved with the addition of Chairing 
Meetings.  

CARRIED 

5



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Meeting Minutes 

5. TRIBUTE TO MEMBERS PASSED AWAY SINCE THE LAST MEETING

A moment of silence was held for Bill Gadjos, County of Forty Mile and Larry Silak, Foothills
County who passed away since the last meeting.

6. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2019 MEETING

146/21 MOVED Maryanne Sandberg, MD of Willow Creek 
That the minutes of the September 18, 2020 Foothills Little Bow Association 
be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

7. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

No business arising from the minutes.

8. GREETINGS FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF ALBERTA

a. Greetings from the Government of Alberta
The Honourable Ric McIver, Acting Minister of Municipal Affairs/Minister of
Transportation was present and brought greetings on behalf of the Government of Alberta.

b. Greetings from the Official Opposition
Shannon Philips, MLA Lethbridge West was present and brought greetings on behalf of
the Official Opposition.

c. Greetings from MP’s in Attendance
Martin Shields, MP – Bow River and Rachel Harder MP, Lethbridge were present.  There
were no other local MPs in attendance.

d. Greetings from MLA’s in Attendance
Roger Reid, MLA - Livingstone-Macleod was in attendance.

e. Greetings from Alberta Urban Municipalities Association
Tanya Thorn was present and provided greetings on behalf of AUMA.

9. REPORTS

a. RMA District 1 Director - Jason Schneider presented an update on the following:
• Noted he will be sending email updates periodically
• Unpaid taxes of oil and gas operations
• Provincial Policing
• EOEP courses will be on February 4, 2021

b. RMA President &Vice President - Paul McLauchlin
• Municipal Climate Change Action Centre programs
• Internet speed testing/ investment in broadband

6



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Meeting Minutes 

• Red Tape Reduction
• HEMS Review Report

10. DELEGATIONS

c. Alberta Transportation – Jerry Lau, Infrastructure Manager, South Region
Mr. Lau provided an update in various projects in the region

d. RMA Governance Review – Gerald Rhodes, Executive Director RMA
Provided an overview on the Governance Review and noted the deadline is January 21,
2021.

11. FOOTHILLS LITTLE BOW ASSOCIATION FINANCIAL REPORTS

147/21 MOVED by Glen Alm, MD of Willow Creek 
That the Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet Comparison account from 
December 2019 to December 2020 be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 

12. RESOLUTION SESSION

e. Police Act Review – Lethbridge County

Jim Bester, Cardston County read resolution Police Act Review

148/21 MOVED by Lorne Hickey, Lethbridge County 
SECONDED by Randy Taylor, County of Warner 

That the Rural Municipalities of Alberta request the Government of Alberta 
to provide greater consultation with rural municipalities on the proposed 
Police Act changes and the future of policing in Alberta. 

CARRIED 

f. Preservation of Water Quality and Access to Water by Albertans – MD of Ranchland

Glen Alm, Willow Creek read resolution Preservation of Water Quality and Access to
Water by Albertans

149/21 MOVED by Cam Gardner MD of Ranchland 
SECONDED by Brian Hammond, MD of Pincher Creek 

That the Rural Municipalities of Alberta request the Government of Alberta 
to proactively take measures to ensure that the headwaters of the South 
Saskatchewan River Basin are managed to maintain water recharge 
capabilities, to sustain high water quality and to provide access to 
significant water supplies for a large number of Albertans.  

CARRIED 

7



13. FORMATION OF BYLAW REVIEW COMMITTEE

147/21 MOVED Molly Douglass, County of Newell 

That Deliah Miller Foothills County, Anne Marie Philipsen County of 
Newell, Tamara Miyanaga MD Taber, Randy Taylor County of Warner, 
Laurie Lyckman Vulcan County be appointed to the Bylaw Review 
Committee. 

CARRIED 
14. ELECTIONS

Election of Chair  

Robin Kurpjuweit made the first call for nominations for Chair. 

Anne Marie Philipsen, County of Newell nominated Jim Bester, Cardston County.  

Robin Kurpjuweit made the second call for nominations for Chair – none heard 

Robin Kurpjuweit made the third call for nominations – none heard. 

Jim Bester, Cardston County was declared elected as Chair for 2021. 

Election of Vice Chair   

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made the first call for nominations for Vice Chair.   

Brian de Jong, County of Newell nominated Laurie Lyckman Vulcan County 

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made the second call for nominations for Vice Chair – none heard. 

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made third call for nominations for Vice Chair – none heard. 

Laurie Lyckman, Vulcan County declared elected as Vice Chair for 2021. 

Election of Resolution Committee   

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made the first call for nominations for the two positions on the Resolution 
Committee.   

Ian Sandquest, M.D. of Willow Creek nominated Glen Alm, M.D. of Willow Creek. 
Jim Bester, Cardston County nominated Randy Bullock, Cardston County 

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made the second call for nominations for the two positions on the 
Resolution Committee – none heard. 

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit made the third call for nominations for the two positions on the Resolution 
Committee – none heard. 

Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Meeting Minutes 

8



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association Meeting Minutes 

Glen Alm, M.D. of Willow Creek and Randy Bullock, Cardston County, Cardston County were 
declared elected as members of the Resolution Committee for 2021.  

15. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Robin Kurpjuweit adjourned the meeting at 12:28 p.m. 

___________________________ __________________________ 
Chair Secretary-Treasurer 

9



FOOTHILLS LITTLE BOW MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

A Bylaw of the Foothills Little Bow Association in the Province 
of Alberta for the purposes of administering the Association. 

WHEREAS, certain municipalities within Southern Alberta have deemed it appropriate to 
establish an Association dedicated to advocacy of municipal issues, and 

WHEREAS, the municipalities have determined that it would be fit and proper to establish 
a bylaw dedicated to outlining the operational and administrative procedures of the 
Association, 

NOW THEREFORE THE FOOTHILLS LITTLE BOW ASSOCIATION, DULY 
ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited as the “Foothills Little Bow Association Bylaw”.

A. Definitions

2. The following terms shall have the associated meanings set forth below;

“Act” means the Rural Municipalities of Alberta Act, S.A. 1923, c. 67, as amended from time 
to time.

“Board of Directors” or “Directors” or “Executive” shall mean the Board of Directors of the 
Association including the Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary-Treasurer; 

“Meeting” shall mean a meeting of the Association at a time, date and place established by the 
members of the Association’ 

“Member” shall mean a member of the Association and shall include the following 
municipalities:         

Cardston County 
Cypress County 
Foothills County 
County of Forty Mile
County of Newell 



Lethbridge County 
M.D. of Pincher Creek
M.D. of Ranchland
M.D. of Taber
Vulcan County
M.D. of Willow Creek
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

“Province” shall mean the Province of Alberta. 

“Rural Municipality” shall mean a municipal district created pursuant to the Municipal 
Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26, county, or other special area or specialized municipality 
within the Province. 

“Resolution Policy” shall mean a policy adopted by the Association for the purpose of adopting 
resolutions to be forwarded to the RMA. 

“RMA” means the Rural Municipalities of Alberta. 

“Voting Delegates” shall mean an elected official of a member municipality. 

B. Membership

3. The Foothills Little Bow Association shall be made up of rural municipalities.

Notwithstanding sections 3 above, the Foothills Little Bow Association may, in its sole 
discretion, allow duly incorporated specialized municipalities to become members of the 
Association by majority vote at a regular meeting. 

4. Any Member wishing to withdraw its membership may do so upon prior written notice to
the Board.

C. Membership Fee

5. Annual fees for upcoming year for all Members shall be set by the Association at the
September meeting of each year.

6. In each year, the respective membership fee shall be paid to the Association and shall be
due and payable by each Member on or before March 1st of each year.  The membership fees
paid are non-refundable.



D. Meetings of the Association

7. The Association shall hold a meeting on the third Friday of January and the third Friday of
September of each year unless by common consent another date is established by the body of
the Association by Resolution.  Each meeting shall be called to order at 10:00 a.m.  The meeting
location for each meeting shall be determined by the Association.

8. Agendas for each meeting shall be distributed to the Chief Administrative Officers by the
Secretary/Treasurer of the Association 10 days prior to each Association meeting.  Municipal
CAO’s shall be responsible for the distribution of the agenda to the elected officials within their
municipality.

9. Following a call to order by the Chair Chairman a rollcall of those present will be conducted
to determine if a quorum is present.

10. Quorum for any meeting of the Association shall be constituted by a Voting Delegate
representation of fifty per cent (50%) plus one (1) of the member municipalities as defined
within Section “A”.  No business other than the adjournment or termination of a meeting shall
be conducted at a meeting at a time while quorum is not present.  This included, but is not
limited to, elections for  President and Vice President Chair and Vice Chair, the acceptance of
financial reports or other reports and votes on resolutions that require a quorum.

11. The Association agenda of each meeting of the association shall include the following
agenda items:

i. A financial statement of the association,
ii. A report by the Chair of the Association

iii. A report by the Zone 1 representative to the RMA
iv. A report by the RMA of those items of business and/or advocacy as directed by the Full

Membership
v. Presentations by delegations on issues of interest requested by Association members,

vi. In the absence of requests from members for presentations by delegations pertaining to
issues of concern to the Association the Chair may schedule presentations on issues that
the Chair believes will be of interest to the Association Members.

E. Election of Directors and Officers

12. At the January meeting of each year  of an election year of the Association, there shall be
an election following nomination and by a vote indicating a clear majority, a Chair, a Vice Chair,
and 2 members of a Resolution Committee.

tyler
Highlight

tyler
Highlight



13. Persons shall be eligible to become a Chair, Vice-Chair or a member of the Resolution
Committee of the Association if the individual is a duly elected official of a member Municipality
in good standing with the Association.

14. The Chair, Vice-Chair and 2 members of a Resolution Committee shall serve for a term of 2
years 1 year to a maximum of 2 terms.

15. A Past Chair of the Foothills Little Bow Association shall act as the Returning Officer for the
election of Chair of the Association.

i. At the designated time on the Agenda of the January meeting of each year the Past
Chair shall preside over the election of the Chair.

ii. The Past Chair shall make 3 calls for nomination to the position of Chair before closing
the floor to nominations.

iii. Members nominated for the position of Chair shall each receive 3 minutes to address
the Association prior to the election being conducted.

iv. Election of the Chair and Vice Chair shall be conducted by a show of ha a secret
balloton.

v. In the case of more than two candidates running for the office of Chair, the two
candidates receiving the greatest number of votes in the first round of voting shall run-off for 
the position of Chair in a second round of voting.

vi. The Chair is declared elected by simple majority of members present.

16. The Chair of the Association shall, after the election for Chair, conduct the election of the
Vice-Chair and Resolutions Committee in the same manner as outlines in paragraph 15.

17. No compensation shall be paid to the Chair, Vice-Chair, Resolutions Committee or
Secretary/Treasurer.

18. For the purpose of administering the affairs of the Association the Secretary/Treasurer of
the Association shall be a designate officer of the municipality represented by the Chair and
shall be appointed by the Chair.

19. The signing authorities of the Association shall be in all cases two of the following three
executive members; the Chair, or the Vice-Chair or the Secretary/Treasurer.

F. Vacancies

20. In the event that a Chair ceases to hold office in his/her own Municipality as the result of a
municipal election or disqualification, the Vice-Chair shall be deemed to be the Chair of the
Association effective immediately.

tyler
Highlight

tyler
Highlight



Lethbridge County 
M.D. of Pincher Creek
M.D. of Ranchland
M.D. of Taber
Vulcan County
M.D. of Willow Creek
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

“Province” shall mean the Province of Alberta. 

“Rural Municipality” shall mean a municipal district created pursuant to the Municipal 
Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26, county, or other special area or specialized municipality 
within the Province. 

“Resolution Policy” shall mean a policy adopted by the Association for the purpose of adopting 
resolutions to be forwarded to the RMA. 

“RMA” means the Rural Municipalities of Alberta. 

“Voting Delegates” shall mean an elected official of a member municipality. 

B. Membership

3. The Foothills Little Bow Association shall be made up of rural municipalities.

Notwithstanding sections 3 above, the Foothills Little Bow Association may, in its sole 
discretion, allow duly incorporated specialized municipalities to become members of the 
Association by majority vote at a regular meeting. 

4. Any Member wishing to withdraw its membership may do so upon prior written notice to
the Board.

C. Membership Fee

5. Annual fees for upcoming year for all Members shall be set by the Association at the
September meeting of each year.

6. In each year, the respective membership fee shall be paid to the Association and shall be
due and payable by each Member on or before March 1st of each year.  The membership fees
paid are non-refundable.



D. Meetings of the Association

7. The Association shall hold a meeting on the third Friday of January and the third Friday of
September of each year unless by common consent another date is established by the body of
the Association by Resolution.  Each meeting shall be called to order at 10:00 a.m.  The meeting
location for each meeting shall be determined by the Association.

8. Agendas for each meeting shall be distributed to the Chief Administrative Officers by the
Secretary/Treasurer of the Association 10 days prior to each Association meeting.  Municipal
CAO’s shall be responsible for the distribution of the agenda to the elected officials within their
municipality.

9. Following a call to order by the Chair Chairman a rollcall of those present will be conducted
to determine if a quorum is present.

10. Quorum for any meeting of the Association shall be constituted by a Voting Delegate
representation of fifty per cent (50%) plus one (1) of the member municipalities as defined
within Section “A”.  No business other than the adjournment or termination of a meeting shall
be conducted at a meeting at a time while quorum is not present.  This included, but is not
limited to, elections for  President and Vice President Chair and Vice Chair, the acceptance of
financial reports or other reports and votes on resolutions that require a quorum.

11. The Association agenda of each meeting of the association shall include the following
agenda items:

i. A financial statement of the association,
ii. A report by the Chair of the Association

iii. A report by the Zone 1 representative to the RMA
iv. A report by the RMA of those items of business and/or advocacy as directed by the Full

Membership
v. Presentations by delegations on issues of interest requested by Association members,

vi. In the absence of requests from members for presentations by delegations pertaining to
issues of concern to the Association the Chair may schedule presentations on issues that
the Chair believes will be of interest to the Association Members.

E. Election of Directors and Officers

12. At the January meeting of each year  of an election year of the Association, there shall be
an election following nomination and by a vote indicating a clear majority, a Chair, a Vice Chair,
and 2 members of a Resolution Committee.

tyler
Highlight

tyler
Highlight



13. Persons shall be eligible to become a Chair, Vice-Chair or a member of the Resolution
Committee of the Association if the individual is a duly elected official of a member Municipality
in good standing with the Association.

14. The Chair, Vice-Chair and 2 members of a Resolution Committee shall serve for a term of 2
years 1 year to a maximum of 2 terms.

15. A Past Chair of the Foothills Little Bow Association shall act as the Returning Officer for the
election of Chair of the Association.

i. At the designated time on the Agenda of the January meeting of each year the Past
Chair shall preside over the election of the Chair.

ii. The Past Chair shall make 3 calls for nomination to the position of Chair before closing
the floor to nominations.

iii. Members nominated for the position of Chair shall each receive 3 minutes to address
the Association prior to the election being conducted.

iv. Election of the Chair and Vice Chair shall be conducted by a show of ha a secret
balloton.

v. In the case of more than two candidates running for the office of Chair, the two
candidates receiving the greatest number of votes in the first round of voting shall run-off for 
the position of Chair in a second round of voting.

vi. The Chair is declared elected by simple majority of members present.

16. The Chair of the Association shall, after the election for Chair, conduct the election of the
Vice-Chair and Resolutions Committee in the same manner as outlines in paragraph 15.

17. No compensation shall be paid to the Chair, Vice-Chair, Resolutions Committee or
Secretary/Treasurer.

18. For the purpose of administering the affairs of the Association the Secretary/Treasurer of
the Association shall be a designate officer of the municipality represented by the Chair and
shall be appointed by the Chair.

19. The signing authorities of the Association shall be in all cases two of the following three
executive members; the Chair, or the Vice-Chair or the Secretary/Treasurer.

F. Vacancies

20. In the event that a Chair ceases to hold office in his/her own Municipality as the result of a
municipal election or disqualification, the Vice-Chair shall be deemed to be the Chair of the
Association effective immediately.

tyler
Highlight

tyler
Highlight



21. In the event that both the Chair and Vice Chair cease to hold office in their own
Municipalities the Reeve of the Municipality from which the former Chair was an elected
representative becomes the Chair of the Association until the Association convenes at its next
regularly scheduled meeting to elect a new Chair and Vice-Chair.

22. In the event that a member of the Resolutions Committee ceases to hold office in his/her
own Municipality as a result of a municipal election or disqualification a member at-large from
a member municipality may be appointed by the Chair as a member of the Resolutions
Committee until such time as elections for the Resolutions Committee are conducted by the
Association.

23. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be a member of the Resolutions Committee.  The Chair shall,
when present, preside at all meetings of the Resolutions Committee. In his/her absence the
Vice-Chair shall preside at any such meetings.

G. Resolutions

24. Resolutions shall be adopted by the Association in accordance with the Foothills Little Bow
Association Resolutions Policy as adopted by the Association and as amended from time to
time.

H. Financial Year

25. Unless otherwise established by the Board from time to time, the financial year of the
Association shall be from the first (1) day of January to the thirty-first (31) day of December of
each year.

I. Auditing

26. The books and records of the Association shall be reviewed at least once each year by a duly
qualified person which may be an employee of an Association Member.  A complete statement
of the standing of the books of the Association shall be submitted to the Members at each
meeting.

J. Amendment of Bylaws

27. These bylaws may be amended or repealed by simple majority of the votes of the Members
provided that notice of such amendments have been circulated to the Members of the
Association prior to a regularly scheduled meeting of the Association.



K. Coming into Effect

28. These Bylaws shall come into full force and effect upon third and final reading by the
Association.  “These bylaws shall come into full force and effect upon approval of the membership and
signature of the Chair and one other Director”.

_______________________________________      ____________________________________ 

Association Chair    Secretary/Treasurer  Director 

Date Approved _______________________________ 

tyler
Highlight

tyler
Highlight



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION: HISTORICAL RESOURCES IMPACT ASSESSMENTS  

WHEREAS, the Historical Resources Management Branch of Alberta Culture administers matters related 

to the Historical Resources Act in Alberta, and 

WHEREAS, historic resources fall into four categories: archaeological sites, paleontological sites, historic 

buildings and other structures and aboriginal traditional use sites, and 

WHEREAS, approvals for new surface material operations are administered through the Code of Practice 

for Pits by Alberta Environment and Parks which requires compliance to Section 37 of the Historical 

Resources Act, and 

WHEREAS, for surface material operations less than five hectares in size on public land or Class 2 pits 

as defined in the Code of Practice for Pits on private land, the applicant must consult Alberta Culture’s 

Listing of Historical Resources prior to initiation of any development activities, and 

WHEREAS, the Listing of Historical Resources administered by Alberta Culture identifies lands as 

containing or having high potential to contain historic resources, and 

WHEREAS, designation of the Historic Resource Value on lands which evaluates the potential of the land 

to contain historic resources as determined by the Alberta Historic Resources Management Branch was 

made without widespread public consultation with many landowners unaware of regulatory requirements 

that exists as a result of Historical Resource designations that have been placed without notification on 

private lands, and 

WHEREAS, the designation of lands as having potential for a high Historic Resource Value creates a 

regulatory requirement on the resource developers to undertake unknown costs and high financial risk 

related to projects which require Historical Resources Impact Assessments including surface material 

development and any use which requires as a condition the approval of Alberta Culture, and  

WHEREAS, existing gravel pits that expand beyond 5 hectares require Historical Resource Act Approval 

which may result in numerous Historical Resources Impact Assessments to be undertaken despite the 

disturbances that have already occurred in the immediate area,    

WHEREAS, all costs to undertake a Historical Resource Impact Assessment fall to the landowner or 

developer, and   

WHEREAS, all Historical Resources are the property of the Crown,  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Rural Municipalities of Alberta request Alberta 

Culture, Alberta Environment and Parks and the Government of Alberta to review the requirements and 

costs for Historical Resources Impact Assessments be funded by the Province of Alberta, Furthermore it 

is requested that a formula for financial compensation to landowners be developed should discoveries of 

historical resources on the land result in restrictions to land use.  

Sponsored by: Municipal District of Willow Creek No. 26 

Seconded by: __________________________________________ 

 

Background Information  

The Historical Resources Management Branch (HRMB) of Alberta Culture administers matters related to 

historical resources including archeological resources in Alberta. 



Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association 
 

 
 

Alberta Culture’s Land Use Procedures Bulletin for Surface Materials Historical Resources Act (HRA) 

Compliance Section B, requires that applicants must apply for Historical Resource Act approval for all 

proposed surface materials developments over 5.0 hectares in size.  At Alberta Culture’s discretion, a 

Historical Resources Impact Assessment (HRIA) may be required. 

For surface material operations five hectares or larger on public land or Class 1 pits as defined in the 

Code of Practice for Pits on private land applicants must apply for Historical resources Act approval 

through Alberta Culture’s online permitting and approval system for ALL proposed surface materials 

developments over five hectares in size. Development activities cannot proceed until HRA approval has 

been obtained. 

At Alberta Culture’s discretion, activities that are targeted for lands that will, or are likely to, contain 

significant historic resource sites MAY require the conduct of HRIA prior to the onset of development 

activities.  

A copy of the Historical Resources Act approval document must be included with the Conservation and 

Reclamation Business Plan that is submitted to Alberta Environment and Sustainable Resources 

Development. This plan is mandatory for Registration of a gravel pit under the Code of Practice.  

In 2021, during the application stage to expand an existing gravel pit the Municipal District of Willow 

Creek undertook an archaeology survey as part of a Stage 1 Historical Resources Impact Mitigation 

review which is a requirement of the HRIA. 

During the review of the lands upon where the existing gravel pit was located it was determined that the 

‘Listing of Historical Resources’ index described the land as having Historic Resources Value (HRV) of 5. 

Given that lands with an HRV of 5 are considered to have “high potential” but do not contain known 

historic resource sites, there is no requirement to seek Historical Resources Act (HRA) approval. 

However, Section 31 of the Historical Resources Act requires that anyone who discovers a historic 

resource during the course of development must notify Alberta Culture for direction on the most 

appropriate action.  

Through the HRIA a historical resource site was newly discovered consisting of heated stones and stone 

chips.  It was determined that additional archaeology work would be required which would consist of 

excavation of an area approximately 80 m2 with work expected to take approximately 14 days.  The cost 

for this work was expected to be $139,941.51. Following the completion of the field work an interim report 

would be issued summarizing the results of the HRIM fieldwork which would be provided to the HRMB 

that would guide their regulatory review of the gravel pit expansion application and provide the basis for 

the regulatory response which may include a Historical Resources Act Approval or alternatively the 

issuance of a Stage 2 Historical Resources Impact Mitigation study which would require an unknown 

amount of additional archaeology work at a unknown additional cost.  

The Historical Resources Management Branch Schedule requirements states “depending on the results 

of the Stage 1 investigation, Stage 2 investigation may be required:  This caveat is intended by the HRMB 

to reserve the possibility that during the required fieldwork materials may be found that warrant additional 

work however this placed a significant and unknown risk to the municipality and the landowner in terms of 

cost and as such the expansion of the application to expand the gravel pit did not proceed.   

As a result of the requirements of the Historical Resource Management Branch substantial costs already 

spent by the Municipal District and the landowner on the application process were lost and more 

significantly scarce gravel resources immediately adjacent to a working gravel pit have been permanently 

sterilized from future development and use. 

 

https://geoculture.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=068e8b3b073d477caffdfc%20d7a9a52a92


Foothills Little Bow Municipal Association 
 

 
 

 

 

Maps of Southern Region  

Alberta Historic Resources Management Branch – Listing of Historic Resources (Map)  
https://geoculture.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=068e8b3b073d477caffdfcd7a9a52

a92  

Blue areas indicate Historical Resource Value of 5 which result in a requirement for reporting of any 

historic resources and potential for Alberta Culture to order additional work as a condition of its approval.  

Note that the HRV 5 follows every river, stream or major coulee feature in southern Alberta: an area 

where gravel resources are prominently found.  

Historical Resource Impact Assessment Process 

https://www.alberta.ca/historic-resource-impact-assessment.aspx 

If an activity is likely to result in the alteration of, damage to or destruction of a historic resource, the 
person or company undertaking the activity may be required by the Province to: 
 

• conduct a Historic Resources Impact Assessment (HRIA) 

• submit a report of the HRIA results 

• avoid any historic resources endangered by activity 

• mitigate potential impacts by undertaking comprehensive studies 

• document historic structures 

• consult with First Nations 
 
Project-specific requirements are issued in response to a Historic Resources Application, but all 
assessments must comply with some standard conditions. 
 
See the following Standard Conditions document for details: 
Standard Conditions under the Historical Resources Act 
 
 

https://www.alberta.ca/historic-resource-impact-assessment.aspx
https://www.alberta.ca/albertas-heritage-survey.aspx
https://www.alberta.ca/aboriginal-heritage-section.aspx
https://www.alberta.ca/online-permitting-clearance.aspx
https://open.alberta.ca/publications/standard-conditions-under-the-historical-resources-act
https://geoculture.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=068e8b3b073d477caffdfcd7a9a52a92
https://geoculture.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=068e8b3b073d477caffdfcd7a9a52a92




Council Members of the Rural Municipalities of Alberta
Attention Chief Administrative Officer
Submitted electronically via email

August 27, 2021 

Request for Letter of Support for the Legalization of Harvest preserves 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

Please allow me to introduce myself, my name is John Cameron, President of the Alberta Elk Commission. 
Together with my wife Christina, and our 3 children, we farm approximately 500 head of elk and bison near 
Winfield. We have been Licensed Game Farm Operators since 1990. 

For the past year, the Alberta Elk Commission has been working on an initiative to advocate to Hon. Devin 
Dreeshen, Minister of Agriculture and Forestry, for the legalization of Harvest Preserves in Alberta.  Harvest 
Preserves are legal in other Canadian jurisdictions such as Saskatchewan but are not currently allowed in 
Alberta.  This places our industry at a competitive disadvantage and causes us to lose both direct revenues 
from harvesting animals in Alberta and many associated economic benefits.  We produced the attached 7-
minute video taken at SilverTine Wildlife in Rapid View, Saskatchewan to show what a harvest preserve 
entails: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uJsbTjaS67I  

As you are aware, having sustainable industries and jobs in rural Alberta is critical to maintaining viable 
communities for generations to come.  Harvest preserves offer many economic development opportunities 
such as hunting, ice fishing, summer fishing with handicap access, kayaking, canoeing, RV lots, camping, 
business retreats, team building, cross country skiing, snowshoeing, shooting range, trap and skeet, firearms 
courses, native arts and crafts courses, horse riding, summer camp for kids, gift shop, boy scout and girl guide 
camp outs, survival courses, and archery shoots, etc.  They employ positions for guides, kitchen staff, cooks, 
housekeepers, maintenance staff, shuttle service, instructors, office and administrative staff. 

The Alberta Elk Commission has collected over 60 letters of support from licensed game farm operators, 
associated businesses and investors willing to invest millions of dollars in rural Alberta to develop harvest 
preserves should legalization be possible.  On behalf of the Alberta Elk Commission, I request a letter of 
support from council for the legalization of harvest preserves.   

Should you or council members have questions or would like us to present to council, please contact 
Bruce Friedel, AEC Vice Chair at 780-201-7475 bfriedel@mcsnet.ca or Mike McRee, AEC Director 
at 403-318-3426 or riverbnd@telus.net

Thank you in advance for your consideration and support.   

Alberta Elk Commission 
#101 5904 50th Street, Leduc, AB   T9E 0R6 

Phone: (780) 980-7582   ● Fax: (780) 980-7591 
E-mail: info@albertaelk.com

H1b

mailto:rhawken@county10.ca
https://youtu.be/uJsbTjaS671
mailto:info@albertaelk.com


  The Alberta Fish & Game Association is your voice in conservation 

August 25, 2021 

To the Rural Municipalities of Alberta  

AFGA Information Circular – Cervid Harvesting Preserves 

Allow me to introduce myself.  I am Victor Benz, President of The Alberta Fish and Game 
Association (AFGA). 

I would like to bring to your attention a topic of special interest to our organization. 
This past January we were made aware of a provincial lobbying effort by the Alberta Elk 
Commission to change provincial legislation in pursuit of the legalization of Cervid Harvesting 
Preserves (CHPs) in Alberta.  We are firmly opposed to this proposed legislation change and 
responded with the attached letter to the Premier and the Ministers responsible, signed by my 
predecessor, Mr. Brian Dingreville. 

It has recently come to our attention that the Alberta Elk Commission is now approaching 
individual counties within Alberta, looking for a letter of support for the legalization of Cervid 
Harvesting Preserves in Alberta.  In anticipation that your administration either has already 
been approached or will be approached in the near future by the Alberta Elk Commission on 
this topic, I am reaching out to share our position with you.  If you deem it useful, we are 
prepared to answer any questions you may have or make a presentation to you and your 
Council on this topic.  

Our position has not changed.   We believe that game ranching is in direct conflict with the 
conservation of Alberta’s wild cervid populations and remain in steadfast opposition of it, which 
includes a call for the phase-out and elimination of all existing game ranches in the province. 
The introduction of Chronic Wasting Disease (CWD) to Alberta was the direct result of the 
initiation of game ranching in the early 1990s. In addition to the risk of prion-based disease 
transmission like CWD, game ranching also results in the spread of other diseases, invasive 
species, genetic contamination, disruption of wildlife movements and habitat fragmentation. 

H1c



2 

The Alberta Fish and Game Association 
13045 - 156 Street NW, Edmonton, AB, T5V 0A2 
780-437-2342    office@afga.org    www.afga.org 

 

 
 
 
At the heart of this issue, the Alberta Elk Commission would expect wealthy clientele to pay for 
access to land where trophy elk are bred and raised in a pseudo-agricultural environment.  If 
this were to be permitted, it is but a small step to allowing paid access for hunting on all private 
land in this province. Opposition to such a concept informs the basis of the AFGA objects, goals 
and mission statement. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Yours in Conservation, 
 
 
 
 
Victor Benz, President 
The Alberta Fish and Game Association 
president@afga.org  
 

mailto:office@afga.org
http://www.afga.org/
mailto:president@afga.org


  The Alberta Fish & Game Association is your voice in conservation 
 

 

 

 

 

January 6, 2021 

 

Honourable Jason Kenney 

Premier, President of Executive Council 

Office of the Premier 

307 Legislature Building 

10800 – 97 Avenue 

Edmonton, AB, T5K 2B6 

Email: premier@gov.ab.ca  

 

Honourable Jason Nixon, 

Minister of Environment and Parks 

Office of the Minister 

323 Legislature Building 

10800 – 97 Avenue 

Edmonton, AB, T5K 2B6 

Email: aep.minister@gov.ab.ca  

 

Honourable Devin Dreeshen 

Minister of Agriculture and Forestry 

Office of the Minister 

229 Legislature Building 

10800 – 97 Avenue 

Edmonton, AB, T5K 2B6 

Email: af.minister@gov.ab.ca  

 

Dear Premier Kenney, Minister Nixon, and Minister Dreeshen, 

 

The Alberta Fish and Game Association (AFGA) represents the common interests of ethical 

hunters, anglers, and outdoor enthusiasts. Almost 40 years ago, the AFGA had the foresight to 

see that critical wildlife habitat was rapidly disappearing and responded by creating the 

province’s first land trust. The AFGA Wildlife Trust Fund Program has conserved close to 

50,000 acres of vital wildlife habitat ensuring that our wildlife populations, including cervids, 

continue to thrive and roam free. Wildlife are a public resource. As the voice of hunters and 

anglers in Alberta, the AFGA has worked hard for over one hundred years to conserve healthy 

wildlife populations. 

 

We believe that game ranching is in direct conflict with the conservation of Alberta’s wild cervid 

populations and remain in steadfast opposition of it, which includes a call for the phase-out and 

elimination of existing game ranches in the province. The introduction of Chronic Wasting 

Disease (CWD) to Alberta was the direct result of the initiation of game ranching in the early 

1990s. In addition to the risk of prion-transmitted diseases like CWD, game ranching also results 

mailto:premier@gov.ab.ca
mailto:aep.minister@gov.ab.ca
mailto:af.minister@gov.ab.ca


2 

 

The Alberta Fish and Game Association 
13045 - 156 Street NW, Edmonton, AB, T5V 0A2 
780-437-2342    office@afga.org    www.afga.org 

 

in the spread of other diseases, invasive species, genetic contamination, disruption of wildlife 

movements and habitat fragmentation. 

 

It has now come to the attention of the AFGA, that the Alberta Elk Commission has established a 

sub-committee to pursue the legalization of Cervid Harvesting Preserves (CHPs) in Alberta and 

are lobbying the Government of Alberta to change the very legislation, Livestock Industry 

Diversification Act, and associated regulation, Domestic Cervid Industry Regulation, they 

lobbied to have applied to their game ranches in the 1990s. 

 

The Boone and Crockett Club defines fair chase as the ethical, sportsmanlike, and lawful pursuit 

and taking of any free-ranging wild, native North American big game animal in a manner that 

does not give the hunter an improper advantage over such animals. Hunting within fenced 

paddocks most certainly does not represent fair chase, and completely contradicts North 

American hunting culture, at its very core. Although hunting for food is generally accepted by 

society, the commercialization of penned hunting would undoubtedly lead to a dramatic decline 

in public support for all hunting. 

 

The AFGA will continue to voice its opposition to game farming and penned hunting of 

domestic cervids to ensure that the irreversible ecological and cultural damage resulting from 

these types of businesses are seriously considered on behalf of all Albertans, and we ask that our 

provincial government make the decision to conserve our wild cervid populations.  

 

 

Yours in conservation, 

 

 

 

 

Brian Dingreville, President 

The Alberta Fish and Game Association 

 

C.c. 

 

Travis Ripley, Executive Director, Fish and Wildlife Stewardship, Resource Stewardship 

Division, Alberta Environment and Parks  

  

mailto:office@afga.org
http://www.afga.org/


H1d



August 23, 2021 

Environment and Climate Change Canada 

Recovery Planning 

351 St. Joseph Blvd 

Gatineau, QC K1A 0H3 

Sent via email to: ec.planificationduretablissement-recoveryplanning.ec@canada.ca 

Re: Rural Municipalities of Alberta Bank Swallow Recovery Strategy Feedback 

To Whom it May Concern, 

The Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) represents Alberta’s 69 rural municipalities. Collectively, RMA 

members provide municipal governance to approximately 85% of Alberta’s landmass and are responsible for 

much of the public infrastructure used by the oil and gas, forestry, and agriculture industries. The RMA and its 

members recognize that the protection of critical habitat and species under the Species at Risk Act (SARA) is 

needed. The RMA appreciate the opportunity to provide feedback on the Draft Recovery Strategy for the Bank 

Swallow. RMA’s input is as follows: 

• Rural municipalities appreciate that protection of the Bank Swallow is needed under SARA. The draft
recovery strategy states that the threats contributing to the Bank Swallow population declines remain
unclear, however the need to mitigate the impacts of many economic development activities have been
flagged as a priority under the strategy. As the federal government explores broad strategies and
conservation initiatives for the Bank Swallow, it is important that a balanced approach is undertaken
which considers the social, economic, and environmental impacts of the various strategies.

• As the federal government explores the potential impacts of agricultural products and management
practices on Bank Swallows, this process should include engagement with affected municipalities and
farmers to ensure that any changes considered to lessen the impacts of agriculture on Bank Swallows
are discussed through a transparent consultation process and that government and the agriculture
industry work together to ensure a balanced approach is implemented.

• The general description of research and management approaches (section 5.2 of the draft strategy)
states: “provide incentives aimed at farm operations for considering Bank Swallow’s habitat needs
when developing and implementing environmental farm plans.” The RMA believes that where
appropriate landowners and farmer should be fairly compensated for the loss of use of land for
economic purposes, resulting from sterilization where critical habitats are identified.

The RMA thanks the ECCC for the opportunity to provide the rural municipal perspective on the draft recovery 

strategy for the Bank Swallow. If you have any questions regarding the RMA’s feedback, please feel free to reach 

out to me.  

Thank you for your consideration, 

Sincerely,  

H2a

mailto:ec.planificationduretablissement-recoveryplanning.ec@canada.ca


 

  

 

Paul McLauchlin, President  

 



H2b





 

Cell number:  

Estimated duration of blowdown:  

Additional Notes:  

At TC Energy, the safety of the public and our employees is a 
top priority. To ensure our pipeline system continues to meet 
the highest safety standards, we periodically perform routine 
maintenance as part of our Pipeline Integrity Maintenance 
Program. As part of this work, you may hear a sustained loud 
noise known as a “blowdown.”

A blowdown is the act of releasing natural gas from the pipeline 
system so work can be done safely on the depressurized 
facilities. TC Energy employees will close the required valves to 
isolate the facilities and then open a blowdown valve to safely 
depressurize in a controlled manner. A loud roaring sound may 
occur when the natural gas is released, although TC Energy may 
employ tools to minimize this noise whenever possible.

Blowdown 
notification 
Blowdown details 
Date:   Sept 17-Oct 1, 2021  Time: 

Launcher NW 23-4-29 W4M 
Land location:   Receiver SW 24-4-1 W5M 

TC Energy land agent:   Sean Oniell Whitehead 

Phone number:  403-512-2763 

Onsite technician (blowdown co-ordinator): 



The sound during a blowdown can be as loud as an airplane 
engine and may last anywhere from a few minutes to multiple 
hours, depending on the amount of pipe being depressurized. 
As the flow of gas gradually slows down, the noise also lessens.

After the natural gas is released, a funnel-shaped air expeller is 
placed on top of the blowdown valve opening, which draws any 
remaining gas out and makes it safe for activities such as welding.

Once maintenance is complete, work begins to safely bring 
the line back into service. Natural gas is sent back into the 
pipeline and, once it reaches pressure, the blowdown valve is 
opened once again to vent the atmospheric air. Once all the 
air is removed, the blowdown valve is closed. The line is then 
pressurized to its normal operating pressure.

Blowdowns of different types occur regularly along our pipeline 
system, from long sections of large-diameter pipeline to  
above-ground compressor station maintenance. They are part 
of the safe maintenance and operation of our facilities. We 
recognize they can be an inconvenience for our neighbours and 
we do everything we can to minimize the effects. Residents 
living in close proximity to the planned blowdown location 
will receive notification of the blowdown prior to the work 
beginning.

If you have questions or concerns, 
please contact TC Energy first.

General inquiries
450 – 1 Street S.W. Calgary, AB 

Canada, T2P 5H1

1-866-372-1601 
(weekdays 7:30 a.m. to 5 p.m. MST)

cdn_landowner_help@tcenergy.com

In case of a pipeline emergency, call: 
1-888-982-7222

TCEnergy.com

November 2020

TC Energy facilities are regulated by the Canada Energy Regulator (CER). The regulator works with 
TC Energy to ensure our pipelines are constructed, tested and operated safely. The CER has employees 
available for inquiries and to assist or advise landowners and occupants regarding pipeline problems.


	A Agenda
	C1 2021-08-24 Council Committee Meeting Minutes
	C2 2021-08-24 draft minutes
	Da SASCI presentation to M.D. (fund Community Grant Specialist)
	Ea Update LOC
	F1a Board Report - August 5 2021
	F3a1 CMCA AGM
	F3a2 Proxy Form Attachment 1
	F3a3 Cover Memo - 2020-21 AGM Info Circular
	F3a4 CMCA 2020-21 AGM Information Circular
	F3a5 AGM Minutes 2020 Attachment 2
	F3a6 2020-21 CMCA Audited Financials Attachment 3
	F3b 2021-06-16 ASB Minutes
	F3c TheLiftlineFall2021-Email
	G1a Report
	G1b Work Order for Council September 14 2021 meeting
	G3a1 AES, August, 2021
	G3a2 AES, September, 2021
	G3b AES
	G3c Direct Control
	G4a CAO Report
	H1a FLB Sept 17 2021 Final Agenda_
	H1b Alberta Elk Commission letter to RMA municipalities 20210827
	H1c1 AFGA Letter Cervid Harvesting Preserves V Benz 2021-08-25
	H1c2 AFGA letter RE Cervid Harvesting Preserves 2021-01-06
	H1d Pincher Creek Emergency Services Funding Formula - letterhead-signed
	H2a RMA Feedback To ECCC re. Bank Swallow
	H2b1 Policing
	H2c Blowdown Notification_Fact sheet



